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Statement of the Mission 
(The Noble Eightfold Path may exist forever) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

Bestowing the World with Versatile Buddhist Missionaries 

and Scholars capable of promoting and fostering in Sri 

Lanka as well as in Foreign Countries the Philosophy of 

Life, which is perspicuous by the Dhamma of the Lord-

Buddha and well disciplined with the influence of the 

Buddhist Doctrine, Pali Language and the Wisdom 

achieved on the related Subjects and perfected with 

different Skills. 
 

To be the Foremost and the Most Excellent Buddhist 

University in the World. 
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The Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka which had been established by the Parliamentary 

Act No.74 of 1981 of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka was inaugurated at No.214, 

Bauddhaloka Mawatha, Colombo 07 on the 22nd April 1982. The major objectives in the 

establishment of this University are to publizise the Buddhist Doctrine, to promote the Buddhist 

and Pali Studies in Sri Lanka as well as in foreign countries and to facilitate researches in the 

respective fields. 

 

The above Act has been amended by the Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka (Amendment) 

Act No. 37 of 1995. With the enforcement of the said Amendments, the local affiliated 

Institutions have been invalidated and the Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka had 

undergone the process of re-structuring to comply with the structure found in the other 

National Universities of Sri Lanka and it has been established in Homagama in the Month of 

June while the External Examinations and Post Graduate Studies Centre of the University has 

been established at the premises located in Bauddhaloka Mawatha, Colombo 7. The Academic 

Premises with hostels has been established at Pitipana, Homagama and the Administration 

Centre (Head Office) has been established at No. 37, Moragahahena Road, Pitipana on 

12.08.2010. The required initiatives have already been taken for transforming the Buddhist and 

Pali University of Sri Lanka in to a fully equipped University with international recognition. The 

University has obtained the membership of the Association of Commonwealth Universities and 

it is an Associated Member of the Committee of Vice Chancellors and Directors (C.V.C.D.) of the 

University System of the Country.       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Introduction 
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The Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka, which is currently operated 
under the purview of the Ministry of Higher Education is a University 
functions by the Act No. 74 of 1981 and the Act (Amendment) No. 37 of 
1995. The University which inherits a history of 30 years and has achieved 
national and international recognition, holds the membership of the 
Association of Commonwealth Universities and the Committee of Vice 
Chancellors and Directors (C.V.C.D.) of the University System of the 
Country. Academic and  Research activities of the internal students of the 
University are performed in the premises located at Gurulugomi Mawatha, 
Pitipana, Homagama while External Examination Activities are carried out 
at the Post Graduate and External Examination Studies Centre situated in Bauddhaloka 
Mawatha Colombo 07. The foremost Objective of this University in terms of the Act is to 
produce disciplined scholars who are appropriate to promote the Studies of Pali and Buddhist 
Philosophy in Sri Lanka as well as in foreign countries.          
 
Academic as well as research activities of the Buddhist and Pali University are carried out by 8 
Departments of Study under the two Faculties of Buddhist Studies and Language Studies. I am 
pleased to mention that the availability of Senior Professors, Professors, Senior Lecturers and 
Graduates with Doctorate Degrees among the Academic Staff which is approximately 50 
members has contributed positively for uplifting the quality of the academic and research 
activities.  
 
The Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka which is perfected with the aforementioned 
Human Resources as well as fully equipped library facilities, Lecture hall facilities with modern 
accessories and residential facilities provides a proper academic and research environment. 
Thereby, a large number of local and foreign lay and clergy students register with the Buddhist 
and Pali University of Sri Lanka annually with the objective following Courses.   
 
The Courses of the University has been designed with the objective of producing scholars who 
befit the modern world with knowledge and discipline through broadening the wisdom in 
subjects and practical usage. Likewise, the attention has been focussed on introducing novel 
courses by identifying new requirements. Further, we have drawn our attention to produce 
scholars useful to the world through functioning with the identification of the national and 
international requirements by updating the prevailing Courses. Hence, the facilities required for 
teaching the oriental and western Languages such as Tamil, Hindi, Chinese, Japanese, Korean 
and French in addition to the English Language. In parallel to nourishing the Buddhist and Pali 
University of Sri Lanka with Human resources as well as Physical Resources, functioning for 
building a proper world through bestowing the World with scholars equipped with wisdom and 
Discipline through utilization of such resources is our utmost duty. I greatly appreciate the 
cooperation extended by the Government and the commitment of the Academic and Non-
academic staffs and the compatibility of students.   
 
 

The Message of the Venerable Mahopadyaya Thero 
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Professor Venerable Gallelle Sumanasiri Thero 
Venerable Mahopaddyaya Thero 
Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka 
 

 

 

 

The Objectives of the University which had been restructured in terms of the Buddhist and Pali 

University of Sri Lanka (Amendment) Act No. 37 of 1995. 

 

I. Training of Scholars on the Buddhism and on the rules of discipline for the priesthood for 

publicizing the Religion of Buddhism in Sri Lanka as well as in foreign countries and for 

fostering the Buddist missionary activities;     

 
II. Promoting the Education of Pali Language, Buddhist Culture and Buddhist Philosophy in 

Sri Lanka as well as in foreign countries and uplifting such educational activities to suit 

the current trends in the World;  

 

III. (a) Training of  Pupil Monks and male lay students for teaching the Buddhism and Pali     
Language in Piriven, Schools and similar Institutions;   

 
(b) Provision of facilities required for the maintenance and the improvement of the 

moral conduct and mental discipline of Pupil Monks and all the male lay students; 
and  

 
(c)  Any other matter related to above matters or incidental thereto.  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our Objectives 
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Administration Council:-  
 

Mahopadyaya 
 

-     Professor Venerable Gallelle Sumanasiri Thero – (From 31.10.2014) 

-     Professor Venerable Ittademaliye Indasara Thero – (Up to 30.10.2014) 

     

1.   Represesentatives of the Faculties  
 

Dean of each Faculty:- 

   

Dean of the Faculty of Language 

Education 

- Senior Professor, Venerable  Uthurawala  

Dhammarathana Thero (Up to 29.08.2014) 

 

Dean of the Faculty of Buddhist Studies - Professor, Venerable Wawwe 

Dhammarakkitha Thero 

  

2.    Representatives of the Senate 

 
 

     Members selected from among the Members of the Senate: -  

 

    Professor, Venerable Neluwe Sumanawansa Thero 

  Professor, Venerable Ekiriyagala Nanda Thero 

 

3. Representatives of the Ministry 

1. Secretary to the Ministry of Buddhasasana and Religious Affairs or his Nominee 

 Mr. M.K.B. Dissanayake (Secretary) - Ministry of Buddhasasana and Religious Affairs 

 

4.  Secretary to the Ministry of Higher Education or his Nominee 

Mr. Piyasena Ranepura (Additional Secretary) – Ministry of Higher Education 

 

Board of Authority of the University 
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5. Representatives appointed by the Hon. Minister 

 

Members appointed by the Hon. Minister in charge of the Subject 

 

 Rajakeeya Panditha Venerable Tirikunamale Ananda Mahanayake Thero 

 Rajakeeya Panditha, Thripitika Wisharadha Venerable Ankumbure 

Premawansha Thero 

 Professor, Venerable Thumbulle Seelakkhandha Nayake Thero 

 Venerable Alikewala Seelananda Nayake Thero (Master of Arts) 

 Venerable Banagala Upatissa Nayake Thero 

 Mr. G. Radampola (Attorney-at-Law) 

 Mr. B.H.M. Rathnasiri 

 Mr. J.M.U.B. Jayasekera 

 

6.    As the Secretary to the Administration Council:- 

       Mr. R.A. Piyaratne (Registrar) as the Secretary of the Administration Council 

 

7.    Number of Meetings of the Administration Council: -  

 

11 Sessions of the Administration Council and 02 Special Sessions of the Administration 

Council had been conducted during the period of 28.01.2014 – 25.11.2014. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Annual Report 2014 

 

-  Buddhist and Pali University Of Sri Lanka - Page 8 
 

 

 
 

1.       Designation of the Great Mahopadyaya 
 
Most Venerable Aggamaha Panditha Napana Pemasiri Thero – the Prelate of the Sri 
Lanka Ramanna Nikaya (Up to 15.01.2014)  
 
Most Venerable Thibbatuwawe Sri Siddhartha Sumangalabhidhana Thero – the Prelate 
of Malwathu Chapter of the Siyam Nikaya – (From 16.01.2014) 
 

 
 
 

2.        Venerable Mahopadyaya Thero 

             Professor, Venerable Gallelle Sumanasiri Thero 

 
 

3.        Dean of the Faculty of Buddhist Studies 

Professor, Venerable Wawwe Dhammarakkitha Thero  

 

4.          Dean of the Faculty of Language Studies 

            Senior Professor, Venerable Uthurawala Dhammarathana Thero (Up to 29.08.2014) 

 

5.        Registrar 

            Mr. R.A. Piyaratne 

 

6.        Librarian 
 
Mrs. Chandra Karunaratne 
 

7.        Bursar 
 
Mrs. P.P. Fernando 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Officers of the University in terms of the Act 

e Administration Council have been conducted during the period of 25.01.2013 – 
24.12.2013. 
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1. Venerable Mahopadyaya Thero ( 

 

                         -     Professor Venerable Gallelle Sumanasiri Thero – (From 31.10.2014) 

                         -     Professor Venerable Ittademaliye Indasara Thero – (Up to 30.10.2014) 

 

         2.   Dean of each Faculty:- 

  

 Dean of the Faculty of Language 

Education 

- Senior Professor, Venerable  

Uthurawala  Dhammarathana 

Thero (Up to 10.09.2014) 

 

 Dean of the Faculty of Buddhist 

Studies 

- Professor, Venerable Wawwe 

Dhammarakkitha Thero 

 
 

1. Heads of each Department of Studies:- 
 

 

i.     Senior Professor, Venerable Wegama Piyarathana Thero – (Up to 10.06.2014) 

(Head of the Department of Pali Language) 

ii.    Professor, Venerable Neluwe Sumanawansa Thero 

(Head of the Department of Sanskrit) 

iii.   Professor, Venerable Akiriyagala Nanda Thero 

(Head of the Department of Buddhist Culture) 

iv.   Doctor Venerable Moragollagama Uparathana Thero 

       (Head of the Department of Pali Language) (From 08.07.2014) 

v.    Professor, (Mrs.) H.M.Y.V.K. Herath – (Up to 10.06.2014) 

(Head of the Department of Archaeology) 

vi.   Senior Lecturer, Mrs. K.A.S.N. Amarasekera (From 10.06.2014) 

(Head of the Department of Archaeology) 

vii.  Senior Lecturer, Mr. Samantha Ilangakoon  

(Head of the Department of Religious Studies and Comparative Philosophy) – From    

12.06.2013 

viii.  Associate Professor, Venerable Dunukewatte Gunarathana Thero (Up to 08.04.2014)  

(Department of Sinhala)  

              ix.   Professor, E.A. Wickremasinghe (From 10.06.2014)  

 

 

The Senate 
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2. Librarian         
            Mrs. Chandra Karunarathne  

 

3. Representative of the Faculty:- 
 

4.   Librarian        
           - Mrs. Chandra Karunarathne  

 

5.   Representative of the Faculties:- 
 

 

 Faculty of Language Studies:- 
- Dr. Venerable Gonadeniye Pannarathana Thero 
- Lecturer, Mr. K.G. Swarnananda  

 

 Faculty of Buddhist Studies:- 
        -     Senior Lecturer, Mrs. Chandrani Munasinghe 
        -     Lecturer, Venerable Aluthgama Wimalarathana Thero 

 
 

6.   Members Appointed:-  
                  -   Professor, Venerable Makuruppe Dhammananda Thero 
                  -   Senior Lecturer, Doctor Venerable Naotunne wimalaghana Thero 
                  -   Doctor Venerable Medagampitiye Wijithadhamma Thero 
                  -   Professor Anura Manathunga 
                  -   Senior Lecturer, Mr. K.A. Weerasena 
 

       7.  Secretary of the Senate: -  
                           -   Mr. R.A. Piyarathne (Registrar) 
      
           Number of Senate Meetings Conducted: -  

12 Senate Meetings had been conducted for the duration of  07.01.2014 up 
to 09.12.2014. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Annual Report 2014 

 

-  Buddhist and Pali University Of Sri Lanka - Page 11 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Two Faculty Boards comprised of the following persons have been established for each 

Faculty in terms of the Provisions stipulated in the Amended Act. 

 

 Number of Meetings conducted for  the Faculty Board of Buddhit Studies      -   11                                                                        

 Number of Meetings conducted for  the Faculty Board of Buddhit Studies      -   09  

 Number of Student Welfare Committee Meetings conducted                            -   07  

 

 

Information on the Faculty Boards:  

 

 Faculty of Buddhist Studies:- 

Members: - 

1.    Dean – Professor Venerable Wawwe Dhammarakkitha Thero 

2.    Professor Akiriyagala Nanda Thero 

3.   Professor, Venerable Gallelle Sumanasiri Thero (Has participated in June 2014 subsequent to   

enjoying Sabbatical leave and not participated after October 2014 since appointed to the 

Post of Mahopaddyaya.)  

4.    Senior Lecturer, Mrs. K.A.S.N. Amarasekera 

5.    Senior Lecturer, Mr. Samantha Ilangakoon 

6.    Professor Venerable Ittademaliye Indasara Thero – From November 2014 (Special Leave) 

7.    Professor (Mrs) H.M.Y.V.K. Herath 

8.    Senior Lecturer, Mrs. M.A.C. Munasinghe   

9.  Senior Lecturer, Venerable Pitigala Wijitha Thero (Will be participating from August 2014 

subsequent to having Study Leave) 

10.  Lecturer, Venerable Aluthgama Wimalarathne Thero 

11.  Lecturer, Doctor Venerable Panahaduwe Yasassi Thero 

12.  Lecturer (Probationary) Venerable Ilukewela Dhammarathana Thero 

13.  Mrs. W.P.L. Mihirani Nilushika  

 

Guest Member: 
1. Mrs. Chandra Karunarathne – Librarian (From the Month of March 2014) 
 

Members Appointed: -  
1. Senior Professor, Mr. Daya Edirisinghe 
2. Professor, Mr. Karunasena Hettiarachchi 
3. Senior lecturer, K.A. Weerasena 
 

Faculty Boards 
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Student Representatives: -  
There was no student representation since a Union has not been established. 

Secretary of the Facculty Boards: - 

Venerable Bogamuwe Dheerananda Thero – Assistant Registrar (Studies and Students’ Services) 

  

 Faculty of Language Studies 

Members: - 

1. Dean – Senior Professor, Venerable Uthurawala  Dhammarathana Thero (Up to the Month 

of September 2014) 

2. Professor, Venerable Neluwe Sumanawansa Thero 

3. Professor, E.A. Wickramasinghe (Will be participating from May 2014 subsequent to 

enjoying the Sabbatical leave.) 

4. Senior Lecturer, Venerable Moragollagama Uparathana Thero 

5. Lecturer, Mr. K.G. Swarnanada  

6. Senior Professor, Venerable Wegama Piyarathana Thero (Has obtained Sabbatical Leave 

with effect from May 2014)  

7. Associate Professor, Venerable Dunukewatte Gunarathane Thero  

8. Senior Lecturer, Venerable Mawathagama Pemananda Thero (Has obtained Study leave) 

9. Lecturer Venerable Gonadeniye Pannarathana Thero 

10. Lecturer (Probationary) Mrs. Varuni Tennakoon 

11. Lecturer (Probationary) Mrs. Nirosha Salwathura (From July 2014) 

12. Mr. H.A. Dinesh Kumara Gunathilake 

 
Guest Member: 
1. Mrs. Chandra Karunarathne – Librarian (From the Month of March 2014) 
 

Members Appointed: - 

1. Professor, Venerable Makuruppe Dhammananda Thero 

2. Professor Walter Marasinghe 

3. Professor Ananda Abesiriwardhana 

 

Student Representatives: -  
There was no student representation since a Union has not been established. 
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Secretary of the Faculty Boards: - 

Venerable Bogamuwe Dheerananda Thero – Assistant Registrar (Studies and Students’ Services) 

 

Students’ Welfare Committee 

Members: - 

Academic: - 

01.  Professor Venerable Ittademaliye Indasara Thero                      –   Venerable Mahopaddyaya  Thero 

02.  Senior Professor, Venerable Uthurawala Dhammarathana Thero       –   Dean (Language Studies) 
03.  Proferssor, Venerable Wawwe Dhammarakkhitha Thero                     –   Dean (Buddhist Studies) 
04.  Mrs. Chandra Karunarathne                                                                        –    Librarian 
05.  Professor Venerable Neluwe Sumanawansa Thero                                –   Senior Student Counsellor 
06.  Doctor Venerable Moragollagama Uparathana Thero –     Supervisor 
07.  Senior lecturer, Mr. Samantha ilangakoon                                               –     Students Counsellor 
08.  Lecturer, Venerable Aluthgama Wimalarathne Thero                           –     Students Superviso 
09.  Lecturer, Venerable Gonadeniye Pannarathana Thero                          –     Students Supervisor 
10.  Lecturer, Doctor Venerable Panahaduwe Yasassee Thero                    –     Students Supervisor 
11.  Lecturer (Probationary) Venerable Ilukewela Dhammarathana Thero  –    Students Counsellor 
12.  Lecturer (Probationary) Venerable Ampare Ananda Thero                   –    Students Counsellor 
13.  Lecturer (Probationary) Venerable Pallegedara Suseema Thero             –    Students Counsellor 

 

Non academic: - 

 

 

01. Mr. R.A. Piyarathne – Registrar 
02. Mrs. G. Padmini Fenando – Bursar 
03. Mrs. A.L.M.S.D. Abegoda – Deputy Registrar, Post 

Graduate and External 
Degrees 

04. Mr. E.A. Gunasena – Senior Assistant Registrar 
05. Mrs. Malka Hewawitharana – Assistant Registrar 

(Administration) 
06. Miss. M.W. Sepali Kulathunga – Assistant Registrar (Internal 

Examinations) 
07. Mrs. G.T. Karunathileke – Works Engineer 
08. Venerable Nakkalagoda Yogananda 

(Has been attached to Colombo Premises with effect 
from 01.07.2014) 

– Sub Warden 

09. Mr. Gamini Samarappulige(Has been attached to the 
Ministry of Higher Education with effect from 
01.07.2014) 

– Sub Warden 

10. Mr. R.K. Nuwan Maduranga (On Contract Basis) – Sub Warden (D,E and F) 
11. Venerable Pitigala dhammawineetha Thero(On 

Contract Basis) 
– Sub Warden (A,B and C) 

12. Mr. K.N. Karunathileke – Works Supervisor (Civil) 
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Student Representatives: -  
There was no student representation since a Union has not been established. 

Secretary of the Faculty Boards: - 

Venerable Bogamuwe Dheerananda Thero – Assistant Registrar (Studies and Students’ Services) 

 

Assistant Registrar (Studies and Students Services) 

 
Secretary of the Faculty Boards 
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Members Participated  

Meetings Participated 
 

Number 
of 

Sessions 
Committee Number 

1.  Mr. P. Ranepura,  
Additional Secretary, Ministry of 
Higher Education.  

Chairman 05 91,92,94,95,96  

2.  Mr. B.H.M. Rathnasiri,  
Member of the Administration 
Council   

Member  07 90,91,92,93,94,95,96  

3.  Mr. J.M.U.B. Jayasekera,  
Member of the Administration 
Council   

Member 07 90,91,92,93,94,95,96  

4.  Mr. R.A. Piyarathne,  
Registrar  

Member 07 90,91,92,93,94,95,96  

5.  Mr. R.M.P.A. Janaka,  
Superintendent of Audits 

Observer  07 90,91,92,93,94,95,96  

6.  Mrs. P.P. Fernando,  
Bursar 

Member 07 90,91,92,93,94,95,96  

7.  Mr. C.G. Kothalawala,  
(Senior Assistant Internal Auditor – 
Acting)  

Convenor 05 90,91,92,93,94  

8.  Mrs. M.K.D.D.N. Priyadharshani,  
Assistant Internal Auditor 

Convenor 02 95,96  

 

 
     07 meetings were held during the year 2014. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Audit and Management Committee 
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1. Professor, Venerable Ittademaliye Indasara Thero     -           Chairman 

Venerable Mahopaddyaya Thero (Up to 30.10.2014) 

 

Professor, Venerable Gallelle sumanasiri Thero     -           Chairman 

Venerable Mahopaddyaya Thero (With effect from 31.10.2014) 

 
  

2. Professor, Venerable Wawwe Dhammarakkhitha Thero     -           Member 
Dean, Buddhist Studies 
 

3. Mr. N.M.D. Nawarathne     -           Member 
Director, Department of Trade Tariff and Investment Policies,         
 

General Treasury, Colombo – 01 (Up to 21.08.2014) 
 
 

 

4. Mr. Ranepura    -            Member 
Additional Secretary, Ministry of Higher Education, 
 

No. 18, Ward Place, Colombo 07 

 

      5.    Mr. T.N. Oson    -            Member 
              Director, Department of National Finance,   

General Treasury, Colombo – 01 (With effect from 22.08.2014) 

 

6.   Mr. R.A. Piyarathne    -           Member 

Registrar 

     
 

 

 

 

 

 

7.   Mrs. P.P. Fernando    -           Secretary 

Bursar     
 

 

 

 

08 meetings of the Finance Committee were held during the year 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Finance Committee 
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 Institutional Procurement Committees 

              1.    Professor, Venerable Ittademaliye Indasara Thero                          -       Chairman 

        Venerable Mahopaddyaya Thero (Up to 30.10.2014) 

 

        Professor, Venerable Gallelle sumanasiri Thero              -       Chairman 

        Venerable Mahopaddyaya Thero (With effect from 31.10.2014) 
 

       2.    Mr. R.A. Piyarathne              -        Member 

        Registrar 

     

         3.    Mr. W.D.L. Dushmantha             -       Member  

        Chief Accountant, Ministry of Higher Education, 

        No. 18, Ward Place, Colombo 07 
  

 4.    Mrs. P.P. Fernando 

        Bursar              -       Secretary 

 

06 Meetings of the Institutional Procurement Committees were held during the year 

2014. 

 

 Minor Procurement Committees 
 

 1.    Mr. R.A. Piyarathne               -      Chairman 

        Registrar 
 

 

 2.    Professor, Venerable Wawwe Dhammarakkhitha Thero             -       Member 

        Dean Buddhist Studies 
 

 3.    Mrs. P.P. Fernando                               -       Member 

        Bursar      
 

 4.    Mrs. A.P.P. Karunarathne                               -       Secretary 

  Assistant Bursar 

 
 23 meetings of the Minor Procurement Committee were held during the year 2014. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Institutional Procurement Committees and Minor Procurement Committees. 
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Administrative Issues of the Divisions and proposals for such issues are discussed at these 
Meetings held monthly. 
  
11 Meetings were conducted within the Year 2014. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
    

11 Meetings of the Committee on Study Leave were held during the year 2014. 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

      Construction of a hostel for 200 foreign students. 

      Making arrangements to expand the space requirement by constructing an extension 
to the Faculty Administration building.   

     10 Foreign Affiliated Institutions have already been established and 140 foreign 
students are currently following the Courses.   

      53 foreign students are following internal courses in the University while 247 foreign 
students are following external courses in the University. 

      Internal Degree Courses are being executed under the Unit System and the Syllabuses 
of Internal Degree Courses have been updated and newly revised. 

      Counselling, Meditation Programmes and Ascetic Programmes have been 
implemented. 

      Commencement and implementation of Courses in Languages, Counselling, Astrology 
and Computer Technology which will be assisting in the improvement of skills of all 
the internal students. Accordingly, eight (08) Certificate, Higher Certificate and 
Diploma Courses are been carried out for internal Students. 

      A Pali Dictionary is being compiled. 

      Transferring a land to the extent of two acres out of the land owned by the 
Department of Agriculture located at Gabadawatte.  

 

      Post Graduate Degrees and External Programmes 

 

 The total number of students following external courses is 6,692 and 247 students out of 
the total students are foreign students. 

 Providing the opportunity for Graduates who have obtained their First Degree to fulfill 
their Post Graduate qualifications. 

 Introduction of two year Courses for Master of Arts and for Post Graduate Degrees with 
a view to fulfilling Post Graduate Degree requirement.   

 Conducting 11 Courses at the Post Graduate and External Examination Studies Centre. 
 

 

Progress/ (Achievements) 

 

Committee on Study Leave 

 

Meetings of the Administrative Officers 
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Utilization of Capital Provisions 

 

 Preparation of the Master Plan. 

 Establishment of the PABX Telephone System which inter-connects the Faculty 
Administration Complex of the University Situated in Homagama, Hostel Complex and 
the major Administration Building complex. 

 Implementation of a Project for purification of wastewater collected at the University 
premises and to discharge the purified water to the Environment. 

 Installation of lightning conductor system. 

 Commencement of the renovation activities of the Post Graduate and External 
Examinations Studies Centre.  

 

 

Development of Human Resources 

 

 Making arrangements to increase the Academic Staff quantitatively and qualitatively by 
the recruitment of 10 Members to the Academic Staff.   

 Monthly submission of research papers of the lecturers for professional development 
workshops of the Academic Staff. 

 98 Researches, Publications and Papers have been published by the Academic Staff 
during the year 2014. 

 Trainings have been provided to the Non-Academic Staff by offering them with training 
courses internally and externally for uplifting the efficiency of the Non-Academic Staff. 
Accordingly, three training programmes have been conducted inside the University 
premises and 23 Non-Academic Staff members have been directed to external 
institutions in 34 instances for training programmes. 

 11 officers have been newly recruited to the Non-Academic Staff.   

 

  
 
 

 Increasing the number of foreign students following the Courses in the University up to 
200. 

 

 Deveopment of class rooms with the intention of maintaining the Methodology of 
Student Based Learning along with the Modern Technological Facilities. 
 

 Establishment of the Second Language Laboratory. 
 

 Expansion of local and international Dhamma Communication Activities. 
 

 Provision of residential facilities to the Academic and Non-academic Staffs.  
 

 Construction of a Centre for Mental Exercises with a Dhamma Hall for the development 
of the skills of under-graduates. 

 

 Further promotion of Foreign Affiliated Institutions. 
 

Future Plans 
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 Improvement of the knowledge in Foreign Languages, Information Technology and 
Researches required for the Buddhist Studies. 
 

 Reaching the Goals of the Institution through the expansion of opportunities required 
for the accomplishment of Objectives of the University by making amendments to the 
Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka Act. 
 

 Improvement of the opportunities of studies and researches that can be directed 
towards achieving the Religious and Social Reconciliation. 
 

 Designing the Server Room with the accessories required for networking. 
 

 Maximum usage of computers and Information Technology for all the Courses expected 
to be offered by the University. 
 

 Affiliation with Foreign Universities and with four Research Institutions within the next 
five Years. 
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Existing Faculties  Course of Study 
Classification of 

Students 

Total 
Number of 
Students 

Total 
Academic 

Staff 

Total 
Non- 

academic 
Staff 

Faculty of 
Buddhist Studies - 
Internal  

Buddhist Studies 
 Local 173 

223 19 

118 

Foreign 50 

Faculty of 
Language Studies 
- Internal 

Language Studies 
Local 184 

187 20 

Foreign 03 

Total 410 41 

Library  02 

Post Graduate 
and External 
Examinations 
Studies Centre 

Bachelor of Arts 
(general) 

Local 3916 
4010 

The Service 
of Visiting 

Lecturers is 
outsourced 

Foreign 94 

Master  of Arts 
 

Local 149 
206 

Foreign 57 

Master of Philosophy Local 20 
23 

Foreign 03 

Doctor of Philosophy Local 03 
03 

Foreign - 

Post Graduate Diploma 
in Buddhist Studies   

Local 22 
22 

Foreign - 

Diploma in Buddhism  
Diploma in Pali 
Language 

Local 229 
322 

Foreign 93 

Diploma in Pali 
Language 

Local 28 
28 

Foreign - 

Diploma in Sanskrit 
Language 

Local 02 
02 

Foreign - 

Basic English Course Local 17 

198 
Certificate Course in 
English 

Local 
22 

Diploma in English  Local 159 

Basic Tamil Course Local 20 

64 
Certificate Course in 
Tamil 

Local 
09 

Diploma in Tamil  Local 35 

Diploma in Counselling Local 30 30 

Diploma in Daham 
Sarasaviya Buddhist 
Doctrine   

Local 
1784 1784 

Total 6,692 43 118 

Grand Total  (Internal and External) 7,102 43 118 

   

  

Information regarding the Resources and Students of the University - 2014 
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 Local Students Internal (Number of Students Registered) - 2014 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Faculty of Study Course Medium 

No. of 

Students 

in the 1st  

Year 

No. of 

Students 

in the 2nd  

Year 

No. of 

Student 

in the 3rd  

Year 

No. of 

Student

s in the 

4th   

Year 

Faculty of Buddhist 

Studies 

Buddhist 

Studies 

Sinhala 35 40 50 22 

English 2 3 18 3 

Total 37 43 68 25 

Faculty of Language 

Studies  
Language 

Studies 

Sinhala 64 44 31 17 

English 6 6 9 7 

Total  70 50 40 24 

Grand Total 
107 93 108 49 

357 
 

 

 Local Students External (Number of Students Registered) - 2014 
 

Faculty of Studies Course 

No. of students 
prescribed for 
the Academic 

year 2013 

No. of students 
prescribed for 
the Academic 

year 2014 

Buddhist Studies 
 

Diploma in Buddism 295 229 

Diploma in Counselling 21 30 

Diploma in Daham Sarasaviya 1806 1784 

Post Graduate Diploma in Buddhist 
Education 

16 22 

 
Language Studies 

Diploma in Pali 33 28 

Diploma in Sanskrit 05 02 

Basic/Certificate Course in English and 
Diploma in English 

223 198 

Basic/Certificate Course in Tamil and 
Diploma in Tamil 

36 64 

Buddhist Studies/ 
Language Studies 

 

Bachelor of Arts (General) Degree 

Course 
1583 3916 

Master  of Arts Degree Course 185 149 

Master of Philosophy Degree Course 15 20 

Doctor of Philosophy Degree Course 02 - 

Doctorate Degree Course - 03 

Total 4,220 6,445 
 

 
 

Information Regarding Local Students 

 



Annual Report 2014 

 

-  Buddhist and Pali University Of Sri Lanka - Page 23 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Diploma in Buddhism Diploma in Counselling 
ämaf,daud 

External Degrees 
 

Master of Arts 

Diploma in Dahamsarasaviya 
Sarasaviya          Diploma in Pali 

Post Graduate Degrees in Buddhist 
Studies 

Master  of Arts 
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 Foreign Students - Internal (Number of Students Registered) 

 
 

 

Faculty of Study Course Medium 

No. of 

Students 

in the 1st  

Year 

No. of 

Students 

in the 

2nd  Year 

No. of 

Student 

in the 3rd  

Year 

No. of 

Students 

in the 4th   

Year 

Faculty of Buddhist Studies Buddhist 

Studies 

English 
07 09 33 01 

Faculty of Language Studies  Language 

Studies 
English - - 03 - 

Total 
07 09 36 01 

53 

 
 

 Foreign Students - External (Number of Students Registered) 
 

Faculty of Study Course 
Number of Students for 
the Academic Year 2013 

Faculty of Buddhist Studies Diploma in Buddism 93 

Post Graduate Degrees 

Faculties of Buddhist Studies and Language 
Studies 

External Degrees 94 
Master of Arts 57 
Master of Philosophy 03 

Total 247 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P                                           Information on Foreign Students 
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 Number of Students Enrolled for Internal Courses (Country wise) 

 

 

  Students had not enrolled for the Year 2012. 
 

 Number of Foreign Students Registered for External Courses 
 

 

 Particulars on Courses 2011  2011/ 2012 2013 2014 

1.  Diploma Course in Buddhism 103 85 102 93 

2.  Bachelor of Arts (General) Degree 

Course 
52 39 11 94 

3.  Master  of Arts Degree Course 48 80 102 57 

4.  Master/ Doctor of Philosophy Degree 

Courses  
- 07 07 03 

 Total Number of Students 203 211 222 247 

 
 

 Number of Students from Foreign Institutions 
 

Country Year 2014 

Singapore 104 

Bangladesh 06 

Malaysia 19 

Austria 11 

Total 140 

  
  
  

Country 2009 2010 2011 2013 2014 

Bangladesh 50 25 22 11 04 

Mianmar 18 19 24 24 - 

Cambodia 04 - 01 - - 

Nepol 01 01 01 01 03 

Bhutan - - - - - 

Czech Republic 01 - - - - 

Total 74 45 48 36 07 

Foreign Students Enrolled for Courses 

mdGud,d i|yd n|jd .;a úfoaYSh isiqka 
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Progress in the Registration for Post Graduate Degrees for Five Years  

 
Course 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Total 

Master of Arts 
Local/Foreign 

221 227 308 287 206 1249 

Master of Arts 
Local/Foreign 

12 05 17 19 23 76 

Master of Philosophy 
Local/Foreign 

09 01 07 02 - 19 

Total 242 233 332 308 229 1344 

Singapore Bangladesh Malaysia  Austria 

Students from Foreign Institutions 

a ixLHdj 
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IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  oonn  EExxtteerrnnaall  SSttuuddeennttss  WWhhoo  HHaavvee  RReeggiisstteerreedd  iinn  eeaacchh  YYeeaarr  ffoorr  tthhee  DDuurraattiioonn  ooff  22000022  --  22001144  

 Course 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

1.  Diploma in Buddism 

Local 164 1085 575 1132 881 1077 925 615 603 631 375 295 229 

Foreign Institutions 66 137 114 35 30 26 70 82 89 103 85 102 93 

2.  Diploma in Pali 

Local 32 75 65 74 97 120 77 79 52 54 50 33 28 

3.  Diploma in Sanskrit 

   Local - - - - - - - - 11 - 05 05 02 

4.  Bachelor of Arts (General) - External 

   Local 40 95 73 226 227 572 801 1060 627 1525 543 - * 

   Foreign 10 13 18 20 30 43 28 09 10 20 26  47 

5.  Post Graduate Diploma In Buddhist Studies 

Local 02 07 11 22 20 27 22 24 18 24 17 14 22 

Foreign Institutions - - - - - - - - - - - 01 - 

6.  Diploma in English     116 107 237 143 136 299 314 223 159 

Certificate Course - - - - 42 54 83 42 37 118 119 - 22 

Basic Course     65 43 74 49 56 63 64 - 17 

7.  Doctorate Degree - - - - 01 - - - 09 01 07 02 03 

Students Registered for Degrees and Students Graduated  
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            * Students had not registered for the related year. 

  

 Course 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

8.  Master of Arts 

Local 106 102 83 73 88 82 113 144 158 181 228 185 149 

Foreign - - - - 17 08 - - - 13 80 19 57 

     Non Foreign Institutions  15 21 14 56 30 97 28 22 63 33 - 83 - 

9.  Master of Philosophy 

Local - 05 01 20 03 - 01 10 10 05 12 12 20 

Foreign         02 - 05 07 03 

10.  Doctor of Philosophy 

Local - - - - 01 - - 01 07 01 05 02 - 

Foreign - - - - - - - - 02 - 02 - - 

11.  Diploma Course in Buddhist 
Counselling 

- - - - - - - - - - 21 21 30 

12.  Diploma Course in Tamil 
Languages 

- - - - - - - - - -  36 35 

Basic Tamil Language Course - - - - - - - - - - 17  20 

Certificate Course            13  09 

13.  Daham Sarasawiya Buddhist 
Doctrine Diploma Course 

- - - - - - - - - - - - 1784 

14.  Total 435 1540 954 1658 1648 2256 2459 2280 1890 3071 1988 1040 2729 
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r o
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To
tal  

1984 - - - - - - 1 - - - 1 

1985 1 - - 16 - - - - - - 17 

1986 - - - 11 - - 32 - - - 43 

1987 - - - 18 - - 33 - - - 51 

1988 - - - 17 - - 26 - - - 43 

1989 2 - 1 30 24 - 45 - - - 102 

1990 2 - - 50 20 - 44 - - - 116 

1991 2 1 1 78 10 16 80 - - - 188 

1992 - 1 - 156 - 5 30 - - - 192 

1993 - - 2 257 - 6 56 - - - 321 

1994 - - - 174 - - 70 - - - 244 

1995 - - - 318 - 7 61 - - - 386 

1996 - - 3 176 - 1 116 - - - 296 

1997 - 3 1 249 - 5 127 - - - 385 

1998 - 1 - 190 - 8 62 - - - 261 

1999 - - - 197 - 2 48 - 13 - 260 

2000 1 - - - - 5 6 35 8 - 55 

2001 - 1 2 66 - 3 1 1 8 12 94 
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To
tal  

2002 2 - - 63 - - - - 24 - 89 

2003 - - 7 123 - 7 - 31 - - 168 

2004 - - 2 63 - 7 - 27 23 19 141 

2005 2 - 2 55 - 14 - 25 23 31 152 

2006 - - - - - - - 43 - 22 65 

2007 - 2 1 77 - 10 - 74 54 27 245 

2008 - - 1 67 - 6 - 69 - 33 176 

2009 2 - - 97 - 9 - 73 123 37 341 

2010 - 2 2 109 - 12 - 93 126 47 391 

2011 3 - 1 136 - 09 - 54 301 28 532 

2012 - - 1 155 - 12 - 79 226 39 512 

2013 - 1 1 107 - 10 - 49 07 38 213 

2014 - 2 - 122 - 11 - 52 444 01 632 

Total 17 11 26 3097 54 144 838 653 929 295 6712 
 

 
 
Notes: -   Degree Courses indicated in No.5 and No.7 are not being conducted subsequent to re-structuring the University.  
               The total Number of Graduates produced from this University from the Year 1984 up to 2014 is 6712
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Number of Graduates (Internal and External Courses) 
 

 

 Internal (From 2010 Up to 2014) 
  

Year 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Total 

1. Bachelor of Arts (General) Degree 
(Internal) 

93 54 79 11 52 289 

2. Bachelor of Arts (Special) Degree 47 28 39 38 01 153 

Total 140 82 118 49 53 442 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 External (From 2008 Up to 2014) 
 

Year 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Total 

1. Honorary Degree in Sahithya Chakrawarthi - 03 - - - 03 

2. Doctorate Degree 02 - - 01 02 05 

3. Master of Philosophy 02 01 01 01 - 05 

4. Master of Arts 109 136 155 107 122 629 

5. Bachelor of Arts (General) Degree 
(External) 
 

126 301 226 07 444 1104 

6. Post Graduate Diploma in Buddhist Studies 
 12 09 12 10 11 54 

Total 251 450 394 126 579 1800 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Number of Graduates 
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Bachelor of Arts (General/Special) Degree Programmes - Internal 

 
The details of the Internal Examinations conducted in the Year 2014 have been indicated 
below. 
 
The Examinations pertaining to the aforementioned Degree Courses were conducted 
throughout the Year 2014. Accordingly, the Examinations conducted during each period 
have been mentioned below. 
 

 
 Local students boycotted the Examinations within the first few days subsequent to 

commencing the Examination conducted during the months of September/October in 
the year 2013 due to a problematic situation surfaced among local students. The 
Examination was reconducted from 10.03.2014 to 15.03.2014 on a Court Order for the 
students who refrained from sitting the question Papers during the Period.    

 
 

 Year of 

Registration 

Examination 

From 10.03.2014 Up to 15.03.2014) 

01 2012/2013 First Semester Examination for the First Year 

02 2011 Bachelor of Arts (General/Special)/ First Semester Examination 

for the Second Year (For Students who resit the Examination) 

03 2011 Bachelor of Arts (General/Special)/ First Semester Examination 

for the Third Year 

 

 
 
 

          Examinations Conducted in the Months of March/April 2014 
 

 Year of 

Registration 
Examination 

01 2012/2013 Second Semester Examination for the First Year 

02 2011 Bachelor of Arts (General/Special)/ Second Semester 

Examination for the Second Year (For Students who resit the 

Examination) 

03 2011 Bachelor of Arts (General/Special)/ Second Semester 

Examination for the Third Year (For Students who resit the 

Examination) 

04 2011 Examinations of the Certificate Courses 

 
 

 
 

Examinations and Academic Activities 
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          Examinations Conducted in the Months of May/June 2014 
 

 Year of 

Registration 
Examination 

01 2013 First Semester Examination for the First Year 

 2012/2013 -Do- (For Students who resit the Examination) 

02  Two Year Diploma Certificate Course on Buddhist Counselling 

 
 
 

             Examinations Conducted in the Month of October 2014 
 

 Year of 

Registration 
Examination 

01 2012/2013 Bachelor of Arts (General/Special) - First Semester Examination 

for the Second Year 

02 2011 Bachelor of Arts (Special) - First Semester Examination for the 

Fourth Year  

03 2009/2010 Bachelor of Arts (General/Special) under the Old Syllabus First, 

Second and Third Semester Examinations 

 
 

 Provision of a opportunity for sitting the Examination for the last time for students who 

have sat parts of the same Degree Examination conducted under the Old syllabus for 

more than three sittings through appointing a Committee according to the 

recommendation made by the Senate for checking the results which have already been 

obtained by such students and for allowing them to sit the Examination as per the 

recommendations of the Committee.   

 
 

           Examinations Conducted in the Months of November/December 2014 
 

 Year of 

Registration 
Examination 

01 2014 Second Semester Examination for the First Year 

 2012/2013 

2011 
-Do- (Including the students who resit the Examination) 

02 2015 First Semester Examination for the First Year 

 2014       

2012/2013 

2011 

Do- (Including the students who resit the Examination) 
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       Releasing Results 
 
 Year and Month of the 

Examination 
Examination Date of Releasing 

Results 
01 March/April 2014 Second Semester Examination in the 

First Year  
 

05.06.2014 

02 September/October 2013 Bachelor of Arts (General) – Students 
who sat for all the Subjects 
(Local/Foreign) 
 

12.05.2014 

  Bachelor of Arts (General/Special) – First 
Semester Examination in the Third Year 
 

11.06.2014 

03 March 2014 Students who sat the Examination 
conducted from 10.03.2014 to 
15.03.2014 as per the Order issued by 
the Court of Law 
 

22.05.2014 

04 March/April 2014 Bachelor of Arts (General/Special) – 
Second Semester Examination in the 
Third Year 
 

      
       
      05.09.2014 

  Certificate Course 
 

 

05 October 2014 Bachelor of Arts (General/Special) – First 
Semester Examination in the Second 
Year 
 

 

  Bachelor of Arts (Special) – First 
Semester Examination in the FourthYear 

Answer Scripts have 
already been referred 
for the evaluation and 
action is being taken to 

release results 

  Examinations Conducted under the old 
Syllabus 
 

 

 November/December 
2014 

First Semester Examination in the First 
Year 

 

  Second Semester Examination in the 
First Year 
 

Answer Scripts have 
already been referred 
for the evaluation and 
action is being taken to 

release results 

 
 

Criteria of selecting students for the Scholarships have been revised in relation to the 
Examinations condcuted under the Unit System. Accordingly, the number of students 
who are entitled for awarding the folllowing scholarships have been presented in 
compliance with the Criteria of selecting students for awarding such Scholarships. 
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Title of the Scholarship /Prize 
Number of Students Entitled 

for the Scholarship/Prize 

01 Mahopadyaya Prize 01 

02 H.M. Thisera Memorial Prize 01 

03 P. Subhasingha Prize 01 

04 Kalukodayawe Sri Pannasekera Nahimi Prize 01 

05 Most Venerable Pibure Sri Wageeswara and 

Kalukodayawe Sri Pannashekhara Maha Nahimi Prize  

01 

06 Miyulin Liyanage Memorial Prize  01 

07 Most Venerable Sirimalwatte Ananda Maha Nahimi 

Memorial Scholarship  

02 

08 Korean Nationalist, Hejohn Swameendra Scholarship  03 

09 Baduraliye Jinarama Prize  01 

10 Heenatiyana Dhammaloka Prize 01 

11 Kubuke Don Sanis Appuhami and Wanniarchchilage 

Josthina Fonseka Memorial Prize 

01 

12 Gamini Jayasooriya Pali Scholarship  03 

13 N. Somilawathie Bolgodapitiya Memorial Scholarship 02 

14 Srimath Siril de Zoysa Memorial Scholarship Prize 03 

15 Fransis Hewawidhana Prize  01 

16 Venerable Banagala Upathissa Nahimi Scholarship  01 

17 Ven. Thich Thien Son Felicitation Pali Prize 01 

18 Professor Oliver Abenayake Prize  01 

19 Most Venerable Verallane Wimalathissa Nahimi 

Memorial Prize 

01 

20 Venerable Aludeniye Pannananda Ma Himi Memorial 

Pali Grammar Prize  

02 

21 Witharandheniye Chandajothi Nahimi Memorial Prize  03 

22 Professor Venerable Moratuwe Shasanarathana 

Anunayaka Thero Memorial Prize  

02 

23 Venerable Banagala Upathissa Nahimi Scholarship  01 

24 H. M. Gunathilake Bandara Herath and P.M.G.R. Punchi 
Manike Gamlath Scholraship  

01 

25 The name of the student who has obtained the highest 
marks for the Subject of Pali has been requested by the 
Mahabodhi Association which is willing to award a 
scholarship in the occasion of commemorating the 150

th
 

Birthday of Srimath Anagarika Dharmapala and the 
name of the student has been informed to the 
Mahabodhi Association on the approval of the 348

th
 

Administrative Council. 

01 
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Action will be taken in the future in relation to the award of Scholarships for the year 

2014. Thereby, the scholarships awarded until todate under the old syllabus will be 

awarded in the years 2013 and 2014 as per the criteria arranged according to the Unit 

System. 

 

Number of Students who sit the Certificate Courses for the First time 

under the Unit System during the Year 2014. 

 

 
 

Course 

Number of 
Students sat in 
the Year 2014 

01 Information Communication Technology Certificate Course 25 

02 Diploma Course in Buddhist Counselling 15 

03 Certificate Course in On going (English) 08 

04 Higher Certificate Course in English 07 

05 Diploma Course in Astrological Sciences (Second Year) 10 

06 Certificate Course in Tamil Language I 03 

07 Certificate Course in Tamil Language II 21 

08 Certiifcate Course in Hindi Language 02 
 Grand total 91 

 

Subjects Compulsory for the Completion of the Bachelor of Arts 
(General/Special) Degree  
 
 

Title of the Compulsory Subject 

Number of Students Sat in the 
Year 2014 

First Semester 
of the First 

Year 

Second 
Semester of 

the First Year 

01 
Compulsory English (For Students who 
follow the Degree in Sinhala Medium) 

121 163 

02 
Preliminary English (For Students who 
follow the Degree in English Medium)  

27 32 

03 
Buddhist Counselling (Including Students 
sit for the first time and students resit the 
Examination)  

182 
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The Academic Staff as at 31.12.2014 (Engaging in Teaching Activities) 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Academic Staff as at 31.12.2014 (Not engaging in Teaching Activities) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  
  
  

Designation 
Approved 

Cadre 

Number 
Employed 
Currently 

Number of 
Vacancies 

Venerable Mahopaddyaya Thero 01 01 00 

Professor of Information Science 02 00 02 

Senior Lecturer Grade 1/ Senior Lecturer Grade 

I1/Lecturer/Lecturer (Probationary) 

* Associate Professor 

* Professor 

 

39 

 

36 

 

03 

Computer Imstructor – Grade II 01 01 00 

Instructor In Buddhism 01 01 00 

 44 39 05 

* Associate Professor/Professor - Promotions 

Designation Approved Cadre 
Number Employed 

Currently 
Librarian 01 01 

Assistant Librarian 01 01 
 02 02 

Academic Staff 

Approved Cadre Number Employed 
Currently 

Number of vacancies 

The Academic Staff  
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Faculty of Language 
Studies  

02 02 01 - 02 - 03 10 - - - 20 

Faculty of Buddhist 
Studies 

- 05 - 02 02 - 02 06 - 01 01 19 

Library - - - -  01 - - 01 - - 02 

Total 02 07 01 02 04 01 05 16 01 01 01 41 

 
 
      
 
 

Faculty of Buddhist Studies Visiting Lecturers 

Buddhist Philosophy   13 

Buddhist Culture 02 

Archaeology 07 

Department of Religious Studies and Comparative 
Philosophy 

01 

Compulsory Certificate Course in Buddhist Counselling  03 

Two Year Higher Certificate Course on Buddhist 
Counselling  

03 

Total 29 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

Faculty of Language Studies Visiting Lecurers 

Sanskrit Language 02 

Pali Language 05 

Sinhala and  Modern Languages 01 

English  01 

Total 09 

Information on the Academic Staff - 2014 

Information on Visiting  Lecturers - 2014 

Faculty of Buddhist Studies 

Library 
Total 
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AAppppooiinnttmmeenntt  ooff  VViissiittiinngg  LLeeccttuurreerrss  ––  FFaaccuullttyy  wwiissee  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

  
  
  

Faculty Visiting Lecturers 

Faculty of Buddhist Studies 29 

Faculty of Language Studies 09 

Total 38 

AAppppooiinnttmmeenntt  ooff  VViissiittiinngg  LLeeccttuurreerrss  ––  FFaaccuullttyy  wwiissee 

Faculty of Buddhist Studies Faculty of Language Studies 
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AAppppooiinnttmmeenntt  ooff  VViissiittiinngg  LLeeccttuurreerrss  22001100  ––  22001144  

  

Subject 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Numb
er 

Number 
of 

Hours 

Num
ber 

Number 
of Hours 

Number 
Number 

of 
Hours 

Numb
er 

Number 
of 

Hours 
Number 

Number 
of Hours 

Buddhist Philosophy   10 668 12 1386 06 690 04 360 13 680 

Buddhist Culture 04 480 05 480 08 562 06 735 02 12 

Sanskrit 02 480 06 1020 04 630 04 810 02 360 

Pali  04 720 05 780 05 960 04 630 05 480 

Archaeology 05 120 10 462 07 615 07 605 07 325 

Department of 
Religious Studies and 
Comparative 
Philosophy 

- - 05 416 - - 01 60 01 20 

Sinhala and Modern 
Languages 

- - - - 01 50 01 100 01 60 

German 01 120 01 120 - - - - - - 

Japanese 01 120 01 120 01 120 - - - - 

Korean 02 160 01 120 02 150 01 120 - - 

Tamil 01 120 01 120 - - - - - - 

Hindi 01 120 01 120 01 120 01 120 - - 

Chinese 01 120 01 120 02 180 01 120 - - 

Buddhist Counselling - - - - - - 05 192 06 374 

English - - - - - - - - 01 160 

Total 32 3228 49 5264 37 4077 35 3852 38 2471 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

English 

Buddhist Counselling 

Sinhala and Modern Languages 

   Religious Studies and Comparative 
Philosophy 

Archaeology 

Pali 

Sanskrit 

Buddhist Culture 
 

Buddhist Philosophy   
 

Appointment of Visiting Lecturers – Subject wise 
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Researches and Publications - 2014 (Faculty wise) 
 
 

 Number of 

Researches 

Number of 

Publications 

Number of 

Document 

Total 

Number 

Faculty of Buddhist 

Studies 

05 07 38 50 

Faculty of Language 

Studies 

- 05 43 48 

Total 05 12 81 98 

Grand total 98 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

* Please refer Annexure I for details. 

 No. Presented 
2012 2013 2014 

No. of Researchers 03 03 05 

No. of Publications 04 09 12 

No. of Documents 75 99 81 

Total 82 111 98 

Presentation of Researches and Publications 

No. of Researches No. of Publications 

 
No. of 
Documents   
ocument 
Document 
No. of 
Document 

         Researches and Publications - 2014 

Research and Publications 
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           Composition of the Staff  
 

Librarian -     01 

Assistant Librarian -     01 

Senior Staff Assistant (Library Services) -     02 

Library Assistant -     04 

Library Attendant -     04 

Machine Operator -     01 

Labourer -     02 

           Total    -     15 
  

     Number of Registered Readers of the Library  
 

Under Graduates -    389 

Academic Staff -      43 

Non- academic Staff -      99 

Post Graduate Students  -    203 

           Total    -    734 
 

Use of Library (Services for Readers)      

      Students                                                         -    15807                                                                 

                    Academic Staff                                              -        690          

    Researchers                                                   -          35 

                    Non-academic Staff                                     -        297 

           Total    -   16829 
 

 
 

            Books received during the year  
  

 Number of Books Purchased     
 

Main Library, Homagama           -   2813 

Library at the Colombo Premises           -     250 

Number of Books obtained as donations                 -     696 

Number of Magazines obtained as donations         -     114 

                  Total                                                              -   3873 

         

Information regarding the Library 

As per the statistics of 
attendance from time to 
time during the year   
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 The Amount incurred for purchasing Books  
 

Main Library, Homagama  - Rs. 1,059,353.20 

Library at the Colombo Premises  - Rs.    193,133.50 

                  (Earnings - Library Charges) 

             Value of the Donations  - Rs.    349,322.00 

 

  

Magazines for which the contribution for the year 2014 has been obtained. 
 

Annual contribution for “The TIMES” Magazine from July 2014 to July 2015 was Rs. 12042.00 

 

Activities of the Library 

01.  Educational Programmes for Readers 
 
             i.     Lecture for creating awareness among the students in the first year on the value of 

the Library, services and the sources of information. (On 27.08.2014)  

               ii.     Organization of the tour to library for the students in the first year. (On 

24.07.2014) 

               iii.   Conducting the lecture for creating awareness among the Lecturers on the process 

of the Library on the theme of “Book, Library and You”. (On 03.09.2014) 

               iv.  Training of the Library Staff to perform the functions of the Library by conducting 

Lectures on the Library on the process of ibrary including the process of 

circulation, classification, indexing, cataloguing, conservation and Conservation. 

        02.  Inter Library Loan Service 

 Obtaining books from the Post Graduate Institute of Archaeology and University of 

Sri Jayawardenepura under the inter library loan service. 

        03.  Binding of Books 

 Binding of 476 books. 

       04.   Indexing 

 Indexing of 2989 books. 

       05.   Classification 

 Classification of 3645 books. 

 



Annual Report 2014 

 

-  Buddhist and Pali University Of Sri Lanka -  Page 44 

     06.    Fumigation Process 

 Fumigation of 520 books. 

     07. Placement of Sections allocated for Sanskrit Language, Litersture/Sinhala 

Literature, Fictions and Criticisms separately for the convenience in the 

retrival of information and for the creation of a Reader friendly 

environment.  

     08.  Finalyzing the formulation of the Collection Development Policy as per 

the Corporate Plan. 

     09.    Maintenance of the Contents Page Service as per the Corporate Plan. 

     10.  Preparation of new Acquisition Registers and maintenance of Display 

Boards. 

     11.    Preparation of Syllabus Files. 

     12.    Preparation of Question Paper Files. 

     13.    Conducting of the Library Committee. 

     14.    Displaying Quotations for promoting reading. 

   

     Library at the Colombo Premises 

 Opening of the Library at the Colombo Premises on Wednesday, Saturday and 

Sunday for the provision of services to readers. 

 

Librarian 

Academic Activities 

 “Historic Development of Lexicography and inquisitorial value of Lexicigraphy” 

Panna Vibooshana: Professor Agulugaha Dhamminda Nahimi Felicitation Academic 

Compendium, Edition. Unuwathurabubule Mahinda Thero, Thamaduwe Devananda 

Thero and Neel Pushpakumara, 2014, ISBN 978-955-41769-0-4 
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 Compilation of articles to the Sinhala Sinhala Dictionary (40 Articles) 

Compilation of Lexicographical Articles for Head entries of Makara, Makara Aduwa, 

Makara Aahara, Makara Uura, Makara Oru Tharagaya, Makara Olu, Makara Olu Pooja 

Uthsawaya, Makara Oluwa, Makara Kata, Makara Koti Kramaya, Makara Gasa, Makara 

Geetha, Makara Gruhaya, Makara The, Makara Thorana, Makara Danaya, Makara 

Nawanshakaya, Makara Netuma, Makara Niwarthanaya, Makarapata, Makara 

Palathuru, Makara Petiya, Makara Putuwa, Makara Pokuna, Makara Pokunu Pooja 

Uthsawaya, Makara Beheth, Makara Mal, Makara Mas, Makara Mudrawa, Makara 

Mesa, Makara Raja, Makara Rewul Noodles, Makara Roopaya, Makara Lagnaya, 

Makara Wasara, Makara Wastraya, Makara Sara, Makara Sirura, Makara, 

Makarakaraya 

 

 Editing Activities of the Articles of the Sinhala Lexicon 
 

Paroopa Udbhidaya – 150 Articles have been edited up to Prathihanaya. 

             Prashansana – Edition of 170 Articles up to Balapathraya 

            Venuwa - Edition of 200 Articles up to Raga 

 

 “Book, Library and You” – Vocational Development Work shop for Academic 

Staff, Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka. 

 
Participated Seminars and Workshops  
 

   i.   First Work shop on “Safety of the Sri Lanakn Bhikkhu Society and Promotion of 

Attitudes,  Library Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka – 04th June 2014 

    ii.   Second Work shop on “Safety of the Sri Lanakn Bhikkhu Society and Promotion of 

Attitudes,  Library Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka - 17th June 2014 

   iii.    "Presentation Skills", Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka - 18th June 2014 

   iv.    "Train of Trainers", Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka - 23th June 2014  

   v.     “Labour Law & Administrative Procedures”, Library Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali 

University of Sri Lanka - 10th July 2014 

  vi.    “Professional Development of Management & Development Assistant”, Library 

Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka - 16th July 2014 

 vii.    “Work shop on Student Centred Education”, Library Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali 

University of Sri Lanka – 23rd July 2014 
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viii.   “Responsibility of the Employment and Efficient Development and Basic Principles of the 

Procurement Process”, Library Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka – 20th 

August 2014 

ix.      “Designing of Strategic Plans”, Library Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali University of Sri 

Lanka – 11th September 2014 

x.       “Seminar on Inter Library Loan Service”, National Library and Documentation Services 

Board. 14th October 2014 

xi.     “Workshop on Vocational Development of Academic Staff”, Library Auditorium, Buddhist 

and Pali University of Sri Lanka 

 

Contribution as a Resource Person 

Lecturer: - Certificate Course on Korean Language, Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka   

 

Assistant Librarian 

Academic Activities 

 “The Significance of having Literacy in Information for the accomplishment of 

the requirements of Information” 

Sudakara: - Pamankada Indrajothi Nayake Swameendra Felicitation Academic 

Compendium, Edition. Muwathenne Somawanse Thero, ISBN 978-955-7534-00-8 

  

Participated Seminars and Workshops  
 

 i.            First Work shop on “Safety of the Sri Lanakn Bhikkhu Society and Promotion of 

Attitudes,  Library Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka – 04th June 2014 

 ii.       Second Work shop on “Safety of the Sri Lanakn Bhikkhu Society and Promotion of 

Attitudes,  Library Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka - 17th June 2014 

iii.           "Presentation Skills", Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka - 18th June 2014 

iv.           "Train of Trainers", Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka - 23th June 2014  

v.         “Labour Law & Administrative Procedures”, Library Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali 

University of Sri Lanka - 10th July 2014 

vi.       “Professional Development of Management & Development Assistant”, Library 

Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka - 16th July 2014 
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vii.      “Work shop on Student Centred Education”, Library Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali 

University of Sri Lanka – 23rd July 2014 

viii.     “Responsibility of the Employment and Efficient Development and Basic Principles of 

the Procurement Process”, Library Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka 

– 20th August 2014 

ix.       “Designing of Strategic Plans”, Library Auditorium, Buddhist and Pali University of Sri 

Lanka – 11th September 2014 

x.        “Seminar on Inter Library Loan Service”, National Library and Documentation Services 

Board. 14th October 2014 

xi.      “Workshop on Vocational Development of Academic Staff”, Library Auditorium, Buddhist 

and Pali University of Sri Lanka 

 

Contribution as a Resource Person 

     1.  Visiting Lecturer: - Diploma Course in Library and Documentation Science, Department of 

Library and Documentation Science, University of Kelaniya, Kelaniya.  

 

Attendance of Students to the Library 

   

Year Attendance 

2012 6,201 

2013 8,470 

2014 15,807 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attendance of Students 
During the Year 
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Lending of Books 
 

Year Number of Books 

2012 7,903 

2013 5,384 

 

Number of Books Available at the University 
 

Year Number of Books 

2012  41,468 

2013 44,041 

2014 53,817 

 

 

 

     

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  

Number of Books Available 
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In terms of the Provisions stipulated in the Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka 

(Amendment) Act and as per the Designations of the Academic Staff approved by the Cabinet of 

Ministers subsequent to receiving the recommendations of the Salary and Cadre Commission 

for the purpose of resructuring and as per the aprroved syllabuses, two Faculties of Studies 

namely, the Faculty of Buddhist Studies for the Field of Buddhist Studies and the Faculty of 

Language Studies for the Field of Language Studies have been established in the University.   
 

 
 
 
 

 Deans of the Faculties   
 

(a) Faculty of Buddhist Studies - Professor, Venerable Wawwe Dhammarakkhitha Thero 
        (From 01.06.2012 Up to 31.05.2015) 
 
 

(b) Faculty of Language Studies  -  Senior Professor,Venerable Uthurawala Dhammarathana 
Thero (From 26.09.2011 – 25.09.2014)  

 
 

                                         

(a)  Faculty of Buddhist Studies 
 

Faculty of Buddhist Studies is consisted of four (04) Departments of Studies.  
 

I Department of Buddhist Philosophy 

II Department of Buddhist Culture 

III Department of Religious Studies and Comparative Philosophy 

IV Department of Archaeology 
 
 

The initial phases of the following Programmes were implemented in the year 2013 with the 

objective of uplifting the knowledge, attitudes and skills by improving the quality of the Scholars 

who have been employed by the University for conducting the Academic activities of the 

University and for safeguarding the Buddhist Order and for promoting the attitudes of the 

Buddhist Monks and for developing a new approach within the Academic Staff on the Academic 

and Research Activities. 

  
 

1. Conducting an islandwide comprehensive Study on ‘the Safety of the Community of the 
Buddhist Monks in Sri Lanka and promotion of their Attitudes – (2013 – 2015)’ in 
relation to the training and education obtained by the Buddhist Monks residing in a 
Religious environment from the ordination of legitimate children until they get their 
Education from Piriven and Universities.  

  

The Faculties 
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2. Implementation of the ‘Series of Academic Lectures (2013 – 2014)’ with the 
participation of Visiting Resourse Personnel.      
 
 

3. Strenthening of the Associations established on Subjects, making them interested in 
doing Research in related Fields of subject and to publish an Annual Academic 
Compendium for publishing Academic Researches. The Academic Compendium, 
‘Meemesisara’ was published and issued by the Union of the Department of Buddhist 
Philosophy in the year 2013.  
   

4. Workshop on the compilation of Pali – Sinhala Dictionary – (2013 – 2023). (A Project 
implemented by the entire Staff of the Faculties of Buddhist Studies and Language 
Studies)  
 
 
 

(b)  Faculty of Language Studies 
 
It is comprised of four Deparments of Studies and two Units as mentioned below. 

 

I Department of Sinhala Language and Modern Language Studies 
II Department of Sanskrit Language 
III Department of Pali Language 
IV Department of English Language 
V English Teaching Unit 
VI Computer Unit 
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Key Performance Indicators (KPI) 
  Key Performance Indicators (KPI)  2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

 01. Upgrading the Image of the University as the Foremost and the 
Most Excellent University in relation to the Buddhist and Pali 
Studies locally and internationally. 16,799 16,923 16,000 14,000 12,000 9,000 

   The ranking of our University as per the existing World 
Classification of Universities. 

 02. Production of Scholars with higher standards to suit the Modern 
World by exploring the related Fields of subjects including the 
Buddhist Doctrine and Pali Language.  

      

   Diplomas, First Degrees, Post Graduate Diplomas, Post 
Graduate Degrees, Degrees of Master of Philosophy and 
Doctor of Philosophy offered internally and externally. 

1,500 1750 5,000 7,000 9,000 11,000 

   Employment in the profession (In Dhamma Communication 
Activities)  

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 03. Utilization of Capital 75% 80% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 04. Upgrading the enthusiasm of the interested parties on Buddhist 
and Pali Studies. 

5,040 6,416 8,000 9,000 11,000 13,000 

 05. Increasing the local and foreign community of students and 
increasing the number of foreign students by promoting the 
Affiliated Institutions.  

      

   Foreign Affiliated Institutions for the year 2013. 10 10 14 16 18 20 

   Foreign students following Courses of Studies at the 
University (Internal and External) 

355 254 400 500 700 900 

 06. Improvement of the knowledge in Foreign Languages, Information 
Technology and Researches required for the Buddhist Studies. (Rs. 
Millions) 

04 05 05 04 04 04 

 07 Expansion of the Modern Technological (Computer) Teaching Unit.        

 
 

Goals 
 

Goals 

Goals 
 

Goals 
 

Goals 
 

Goals 
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Number of Employees at the end of each Year – Information on the Staff 
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Academic 
 

26 21 5 35 23 12 35 32 03 42 31 13 42 37 05 

Academic 
Assistants 

2 2 0 2 2 0 02 02 0 02 02 0 02 02 00 

Administrati
on 

10 08 02 10 07 03 11 08 03 11 09 02 11 10 01 

Non-
academic 

83 70 13 93 70 23 92 78 14 119 100 19 120 108 12 

Total 121 101 20 140 102 38 140 120 20 174 142 34 175 157 18 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 Administrative Staff 
 

01. Venerable Professor Gallelle Sumanasiri Thero - Venerable Mahopadyaya Thero 
02. Mr. R.A. Piyarathne                                 - Registrar 
03. Mrs. P.P. Fernando                                                    - Bursar 
04. Mr. E.A. Gunasena                                                    - Senior Assistant Registrar 
05. Mrs. Malka Hewavitharana                                       - Assistant Registrar 
06. Miss. M.W. Sepali Kulathunga                                  - Assistant Registrar  
07. Venerable Bogamuwe Dheerananda Thero              - Assistant Registrar 
08. Mrs. H.D. Darshani                                    - Assistant Registrar  
09. Mrs. H.A.P.P. Karunarathne                                      - Assistant Bursar 
10. Mrs. M.K.D.D.N. Priyadarshani  Assistant Internal Auditor 
11. Mrs. G.T. Karunathilake                                              - Works Engineer 

 
 
 
 
 

Human Resources 

mSG 

The Administrative Staff 
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 Subordinate Administration Staff  
 
01. Venerable N. Yogananda Thero - Sub Warden 

02. Mr. Gamini Samarappulige - Sub Warden 

 
 

 Recruiment to the Academic Staff on the Temporary Basis 
 
Faculty of Buddhist Studies 
 

Department of Studies (Subject) No. of Lecturers 

Buddhist Philosophy 03 

Buddhist Culture 01 

Archaeology 02 
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The Staff - Section wise as at 31.12.2014 

 

Division 

Executive 
Officers/ 

Contribute  in 
the 

Administrative  
Functions  

Staff – Clerical 
and Parallel 

Grades 

Minor 
Staff 

Office of Mahapadyaya 01 01 01 

Office of the Registrar 01 01 01 

Administrative Division  02 08 13 

Finance Division 02 10 02 

Internal Examination Division  01 05 02 

Studies and Student Services Division  01 04 01 

Post Graduate and External 

Examination Studies Centre 
- 08 04 

Maintenance Division 01 02 11 

Library 02 08 03 

Faculty of Buddhist Studies  01 04 02 

Faculty of Language Studies  - 04 04 

Legal and Documentation Division 01 01 - 

Hostel 02 - 02 

Internal Audit Division 01 02 01 

Total 
16 57 47 

116 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Staff - Section wise 

e Staff  as per the  
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Non-academic Staff - As at 31.12.2014 
 

Designation 
Approved 

Cadre 

No. of 
Employees 
Currently 
Serving  

No. of 
Vacancies 

Registrar 1 1 0 

Bursar 1 1 0 

Deputy Registrar 1 0 1 

Senior Assistant Registrar 1 1 0 

Assistant Registrar 3 3 0 

Assistant Internal Auditor 1 1 0 

Assistant Bursar 1 1 0 

Assistant Registrar (Legal and 
Documentation) 

1 1 0 

Works Engineer 1 1 0 

Private Secretary 1 0 1 

Sub Warden 2 2 0 

Audit Assistant 2 1 1 

Clerk  21 21 0 

Library Assistant  6 6 0 

Works Supervisor (Civil) 1 1 0 

Steno Typist (Sinhala/English) 5 5 0 

Computer Applications Assistant       13 13 0 

Typist 3 2 1 

Book Keeper 1 1 0 

Shroff 2 2 0 

Store-Keeper  2 1 1 

Technical Officer 1 0 1 

Telephone Operator/Receptionist  2 2 0 

Library Assistant  4 4 0 

Driver  11 11 0 

Bicycle Orderly  1 1 0 

Electrician/Plumber 2 2 0 

Cook 2 0 2 

Machine Operator  3 3 0 

Labourer 30 28 2 

Ground Assistant  2 1 1 

Sanitary Labourer 3 0 3 

Carpenter 1 1 0 

Total 132 118 14 
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Workshops had been conducted in the Year 2014 for the Staff of this University as 
mentioned below. 
 
A sum of Rs. 283,250.00 had been spent for the workshops conducted in the 
University. 

 
 

 

Duration Course Full Course Fee 
Number 

Participat
ed 

Number 
Who had 

Completed 
the 

Courses 

Target Group 

1 2014.04.02 Buddhism and Christianity and 
Discourse 
 

          3,750.00 33 33 For all the 
Members of the 

Staff 
 

2 2014.06.11 Buddhism and Islam and 
Discourse 
 

          3,750.00 23 23 For all the 
Members of the 
Staff 

3 2014.07.09 Buddhism and Hinduism and 
Discourse 
 

          3,750.00 23 23 For all the 
Members of the 
Staff 

4 2014.06.18 Presentation Skills          65,000.00 30 30 For the Academic 
Staff and 

Administrative 
Officers 5 2014.06.23 Training of Trainers          65,000.00 33 33 

6 2014.07.10 Labour Low for Administration  97 97 For all the 
Members of the 
Staff 

7 2014.07.16 Training Programme on 
"Professional Deverlopment of 
Management and Development 
Assistants" 

        65,000.00 114 114 For all the 
Members of the 
Staff 

8 2014.08.13 One Day Traning Workshop for 
the Development of the Staff 

 

          6,000.00 30 30 For all the 
Members of the 
Staff 

9 2014.08.20 One Day Traning Workshop for 
the Development of the Staff 

 

          6,000.00 101 101 For all the 
Members of the 
Staff 

10 2014.09.11 “Strategic Planning for Buddhist 
& Pali university” 

        65,000.00 65 65 For all the 
Members of the 
Staff 

 
 

               Promotional Programmes, Seminars and Work shops for the Staff 
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 Vocational Development Workshops of the Academic Staff 
 

The Academic staff of this University were directed training courses during the year 
2014 as mentioned below, 08 Vocational Development Workshops had been 
conducted. 

 

Worksh
op 

Numbe
r 
 

Date Resource persons Title of the Research 

81 08.01.2014 Ven. Lecturer Dr. 
Panahaduwe Assassin 
Thero 

Methodologies exercised by Lord Buddha 
in motivating listeners. 

82 05.02.2014 Lecturer (Probationary) 
Miss. N. Mallikadevi 

Sinhala Tamil New Year- A Comparative 
Study  
 

83 05.03.2014 Lecturer (Probationary) 
Miss. A.L.N.P Pereira 

An investigation on the origin of the 
children’s games described /included in 
folklore. 

84 02.04.2014 Lecturer (Probationary) 
Miss. M.Nipunika 
Sandamali Dilani 

Analysis Of Buddhist Concepts in 
Literatures of Sri Lankan Writers in English 

85 21.05.2014 Ven. Lecturer 
Gonadeniye 
Pannarathana There 

An analysis on ‘Chuthi Patisandhi’ 
according to Abhidamma 

86 06.08.2014 Senior Lecturer M.A.C. 
Munasinghe 

Personalization of the compassion of Lord 
Buddha. 

87 03.09.2014 Librarian Ms. Chandra 
Karunarathne 

Books, Library and You 

88 01.10.2014 Ven. Lecturer 
Gonadeniye 
Pannarathana There 

A research study on the ancient 
Koneshvaram Kovil 

88 01.10.2014 Senior Lecturer Ms. 
Sasni Amarasekara 

An archeological study on the ancient 
welgam Wehera 

88 01.10.2014 Senior Lecturer Mr. 
Samantha Ilangakoon 

A Study on the devotion to God Shiva 

89 03.12.2014 Lecturer Mr. K.G. 
Swarnnanda 

—Shape tfla fok Gama ˜ Colloquial Sinhala 
Language as mixed discourse variety; a 
Study on the syntactic and semantic 
impact of English Language on present day 
Colloquial Sinhala Language  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Training of the Staff 
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   Training for the Non Academic Staff 

 

The Non-Academic staff of this university was directed for Training Programmers in the year 
2014 as follows.   
A sum of Rs. 707,867.30was spent for that purpose on the Non-Academic staff. Names of The 
participants are mentioned below:   

 
 

Duration Name Designation Course 
Course 

fee 
Rs. 

1.  
30.01.201
4 

Mr.R.A.Piyarathne Registrar 

one day workshop on 
exceptional leadership 
and authentic image 
management  

        
8500/- 

2.  
30.01.201
4 

Mr. E.A Gunasena 
Senior Assistant 
Registrar 

        
8500/- 

3.  
30.01.201
4 

Ven.B.Dheeranand
a There 

Assistant Registrar 
        
8500/- 

4.  
30.01.201
4 

Miss M.W.S. 
Kulathunga 

Assistant Registrar 
        
8500/- 

5.  
06.03.201
4 

Mr.R.A.Piyarathne Registrar 

Diploma in public 
procurement and 
contract administration 
(DIPPCA) 

   
100,000/
- 

6.  
26.03.201
4 

Miss M.K.S. 
Priyangani 

Management Assistant 
(Book Keeper) 

Workshop on "Public 
sector accounting 
standards"  

        
7000/- 

7.  
30.06.201
4 

Miss M.K.S. 
Priyangani 

Management Assistant 
(Book Keeper) 

Cash management & 
cash flow control 

       
5,000/- 

8.  
25.06.201
4 

Miss.malka 
Hewawitharana 

Assistant Registrar 
Two day workshop on 
project management  

       
8,500/- 

9.  
18.07.201
4 

Miss N.S.Uduwela 
Telephone 
Operator/Receptionist 
(Female) Grade I 

Telephone skills & 
etiquette training for 
secretaries & 
receptionists 

     
10,000/- 

10.  
18.07.201
4 

Ms.M.M .Chamari 
Hasanthi 

Telephone 
Operator/Receptionist 
(Male) Grade II 

     
10,000/- 

11.  
01.08.201
4 

Mr.Chinthaka 
Saminda Peiris 

Laborer Grade II 
Power Electrical  

       
9,000/- 

12.  

21-
22.01.201
4 

Mr.K.Nihal 
Karunathilake 

Work Supervisor (Civil) 
Hand on practices for 
maintenance on 
commercial building  

       
6,500/- 

13.  
06.09.201
4 – 
02.11.201
4 
On 
Saturdays 
and 
Sundays 

Mr. K.Nihal 
Karunathilake 

Work Supervisor (Civil) 

Certificate Course on 
Sound Control within an 
Auditorium and Public 
Call Systems 

     
25,000/- 

14.  
Mr.M.G Ravindra 
Deepalal 

Electrical Technician 
Grade I 

     
25,000/- 

15.  

Mr.Chandana 
Jayalal Elwitigala 

Laborer Grade II 
     
25,000/- 

16.  
18-
19.092014 

Miss S.K.Kumudu 
Nishanthi 

Computer Application 
Assistant Grade II 

E-Government & Basic It 
Office Management 
practices  

       
8,500/- 
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Duration Name Designation Course 

Course 
Fee 
 Rs. 

 

17.  
26.09.201
4 

Mr.N.A.A. Samith 
Dulanjala Nissnaka 

Shroff Grade III Duties and Functions of 
the designation of Shroff/ 
Cashier 
 
 

       
5,000/- 

18.  

26-
27.09.201
4 

Mr. Gunasena 
Wijesinghe Senior Management 

Assistant (Store 
Keeper) 

Two day training on 
storing goods and 
conducting stock 
investigations 
 

       
5,500/- 

19.  
23.10.201
4 

Mr.R.A.Piyaratne Registrar 
Economic Growth 
through Competitive 
Supply chains 

       
3,000/- 

20.  
23.10.201
4 

Miss Malka 
Hewawitharana 

Assistant Registrar 

One day training on 
leaves and legal 
provisions of 
employees, State 
Corporations, boards, 
authorities and all 
institutions of the 
private sector 

       
5,000/- 

21.  

27-
28.11.201
4,04-
05.12.201
4 

Ven. B. 
Dheerananda Thero 

Assistant Registrar 
(Academic and Student 
Services) 

Certificate course on 
research methods, 
techniques & statics for 
data analysis  

     
20,000/- 

22.  Mr.R.A.Piyaratne Registrar 
     
20,000/- 

23.  
27.11.201
4 

Mr.E.A Gunasea Senior Assistant 
Registrar  

One day workshop on 
"Job analysis : Job 
description & 
specification and duty 
list preparation" 

       
1,750/- 

24. i
t
h 

27.11.201
4 

Miss. Malka 
Hewawitharana Assistant Registrar  

       
1,750/- 

25.  
27.11.201
4 

Miss.M.K.D.D.N. 
Priyadarshani 

Assistant Internal 
Auditor 

       
1,750/- 

26.  
18.12.201
4 

Mr.R.A.Piyaratne Registrar 
Seminar on good 
governance practices 
and the rule of low 

       
8,500/- 

27.  
13-
14.12.201
4, 20-
21.12.201
4 

Miss.H.K.Kumudu 
Nishanthi 

Computer Application 
Assistant Grade II 

Certificate Course 
introduction for 
statistical analysis 

     
20,000/- 

28.  
Miss H.P.W.D 
Ramesha  

Typist Grade II      
20,000/- 

29.  
Ms.H.D.Gunathung
e 

Typist Grade II      
20,000/- 

30.  

20.12.201
4 

Mr.W.G. 
Madubhashitha 
Kumara  

Driver Grade II Skills Development for 
Office Assistants and 
Drivers 
 
 
 

       
5,000/- 

31.  

Mr.K.M. Nissanka 
Bandara 
Ambanwala 

Driver Grade II 
       
5,000/- 
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32.  
Mr.A.M.Mahesh 
Bandara Edirisinghe 

Labourer Grade III        
5,000/- 

33.  
Mr.R.A.Don Anura 
Ranasinghe 

Labourer Grade III        
5,000/- 

34.  

Ms.K.A.A 
Priyadarshni 
Kattriaachchi 

Labourer Grade III 
       
5,000/- 

35.  
31.12.201
4 

Mr.R.A.Piyaratne Registrar 

Second Country Study Visit – 
Diploma in public 
Procurement and Contract 
Administration (DIPPCA)  

277,117.
30 

 
 
 
 
 

A Practical Training was provided to 22 students who followed courses on Secretary Practice, 
Accounting and Electrical Technology at the Homagama Technical College and students 
following computer courses at the National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority, Sri 
lanka Vocational training Authority and the Information and Communication Technology 
Education Centre of the Homagama Zone. 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Performance 250-7415  18-4060 KR-7529 KS-4133 NB-2829 62-7220 NA 4493 

Number of Vehicles used 

within the Year 
01 01 01 01 01 

 

01 

 

01 

Extent Travelled (km) 19296 26584 17268 20322 7384 4835 19255 

Amount of fuel consumed 

(Litres) 
2553 3194.50 2058.50 2455.70 977 1833 2664 

Total Cost for fuel 307,342.50 504,806.00 339,796.00 395,011.70 117,429.5 217,886.00 332,681.50 

Total Cost For repairs and 

maintenance (Rs.) 
83,811.00 44,130.00 171,777.06 202,786.59 134,037.24 54,735.00 72.030.00 

Average Travelling per litre 

(km) 
7.55 8.32 8.38 8.27 7.55 2.64 7.22 

Average cost for fuel per 

km(Rs.) 
15.92 18.99 19.67 19.43 15.90 45.06 17.27 

Average cost for repairs 

and maintenance per 

km(Rs.) 

4.34 1.66 9.94 9.97 18.15 11.32 3.74 

Recruitment of Trainees 

Utilization of Vehicles 
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Performance - Usage of equipment from 01.01.2014 to 31.12.2014 
 

Equipment 

No. of 
equipme

nt  
 

Amount of 
fuel used 
(Liters – 
Diesel 

/Petrol) 

Expenditur
e (Rs.) 

No. of hours 
travelled  

Expenditure  
for 1 hour 

(Rs.) 

Amount 
needed for 

1  
hour(liter) 

Generaters (Hostel 
premises) 

01 1350  
161,050.00 

129 1,248.00 10.45 

Generaters 
(Administrative 
premises) 

01 450    52,650.00 Cannot be 
calculated 

Cannot be 
calculated 

Cannot be 
calculated 

Sub Total  1800       213,700    

Grass cutters 03 180 
 

12 

   28,500.00 
 

  6532 

256.00 136.84 0.75 

Wood cutting machines 01 4   2560 10 256 0.40 

Total 06 3796 436,492.00 
Cannot be 
calculated 

Cannot be 
calculated 

Cannot be 
calculated 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
Ven. Maopadyaya Theros appointed in accordance with The Buddhist and Pali 
University of Sri Lanka Act No. 74 of 1981  
 

 Name Designation Date appointed Date retired 

01 Ven. Dr. Kaakkapalliye Anurudhdha 
Thero 

Mahopadyaya 15.01.1982 14.01.1985 

02 Ven. Dr. Kaakkapalliye Anurudhdha 
Thero 

Mahopadyaya 15.01.1985 14.01.1988 

03 Ven. Professor Kumburugamuwe 
Vajira Thero 

Mahopadyaya 19.01.1988 18.01.1991 

04 Ven. Professor Kumburugamuwe 
Vajira Thero 

Mahopadyaya 19.01.1991 18.01.1994 

05 Ven.Akuratiye Nanda Thero Mahopadyaya 19.01.1994 05.08.1996 

 

 
 
 

Utilization of Equipment 

Ven. Mahopadyaya Theros of the Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka 
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Ven. Acting Maopadyaya Theros, Competent Authority and Mahopadya Theros 
appointed after the implementation of The Buddhist and Pali University of Sri 
Lanka (Amendment) Act No. 37 of 1981  
 

 
 

 Name Designation Date Appointed 
Date on which 

the service ended 

01 Ven. Dr. Kaakkapalliye Anurudhdha 
Thero 

Ven. Authority 08.08.1996 31.12.1996 

02 Ven. Dr. Horana Vajiragnana Nayaka 
Thero 

Ven. Authority 15.01.1997 23.02.1997 

03 Ven. Professor Kumburugamuwe 
Vajira Thero 

Acting 
Mahopadyaya 

24.02.1997 28.101998 

04 Ven.Dr. Meegoda Pannaloka Thero Acting 
Mahopadyaya 

25.11.1998 20.01.1999 

05 Professor P.Wilson Authority 
concerned  

20.01.1999 30.09.1999 

06 Ven.Dr. Thumbulle Sri Seelakkhanda 
Nayaka Thero 

Mahopadyaya 10.01.1999 20.09.2002 

07 Ven.Dr. Thumbulle Sri Seelakkhanda 
Nayaka Thero 

Mahopadyaya 21.09.2002 20.09.2005 

08 Ven. Professor Wegama Piarathana 
Thero 

Mahopadyaya 21.09.2005 20.09.2008 

09 Professor Chandra Wickramge Acting 
Mahopadyaya 

24.09.2008 28.10.2008 

10 Ven. Proffesor Iththademaliye 
Indasara Thero 

Mahopadyaya 29.10.2008 30.10.2014 

11 Ven. Professor Gallelle Sumanasiri 
Thero 

Mahopadyaya From 31.10.2014  
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Buddhist and Pali University of Sri lanka  

Meetings Calendar – Year 2014 
 

 
 

Month 

Administ
rative  

Council 

Senate Higher 
Degree 

Commitee 

Faculty Board meetings Finance 
Committee 

Institutional 
Procuremen
t Committee   

Minor procurement 
committee 

Faculty of Buddhist 
Studies  

Faculty of Language 
Studies 

 

  First  Second  

 1.30pm 2pm 10.30am 9am  1 pm 9am  1 pm 3pm 2pm 9.30am 9.30am 
 

Jauary 27 13 16 28                            28 14 23 05 20 

February 24 10 20            25 25              13 20 02 23 

March 31 10 20 25             25 13 27 06 20 

April 28 07 24           29 29 21 24 02 22 

May 26 
 

12 22 27            27 15 22 07 20 

June 30 09 19          24 24 12 26 05 19 

July 28 14 17 29            29 17 24 03 20 

August 25 11 21         26 26 14 21 05 26 

September 29 08 18 30            30 11 24 04 21 

October 28 13 23        29 29 16 23 05 20 

November 24 11 20 26           26 13 27 05 20 

December 29 08 18        30 30 18 30 04 21 

 
Month Library 

Committe
e 

Student 
Welfare 

Committe
e 

Progress 
review 

committee 
on building 

construction 

Administr
ative 

Officers’ 
meeting   

Academic / 
Non 

Academic 
Housing 

Committee 

Academ
ic Leave 
Commit

tee 

Vocation
al 

Develop
ment 

Worksho

Meeting of 
Course 

Coordinator
s  

Auditing and 
Management 

Committee 

Staff 
meetin

g 

 
Maintenanc
e Activity 
review 
Meeting 

Meetings Calendar 
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p 

 2pm 2pm 9.30am 1.30pm 9.30am 10.30a
m 

9am 2pm 2.30pm 9.30am 9.30am 

January - 
 

07 06 19 - 07 07 28 16 - 20 

February - 11 02 26 18 11 11 25 - 18  
- 

March 18 04 03 26 - 04 04 25 20 -  
- 

April - 01 07 29 22 08 01 29 - - 02 
 

May - 06 05 28 - 06 06 27 08 19  
- 

June 17 03 03 29 24 03 03 24 - -  
- 

July - 08 07 29 - 08 08 29 10 - 14 
 

August - 05 04 26 19 05 05 26 - 18  
- 

September 16 02 01 30 - 09 02 30 18 -  
- 

October - 07 06 29 21 07 07 28 - - 13 
 

November - 04 03 26 - 04 04 18 06 17  
- 

December 16 02 01 24 23 09 02 30 - -  
- 
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Cost per Student for 5 years – In accordance with State Audit Reports 
 

Year 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Cost Rs. 241,517/- 261,120/- 336,763/- 528,706/- 572,351/- 
 

 Cost Per Student for the year 2012 has increased since there was no First Year Batch in 

the relevant year. 

 
 
 
 

 

The Scholarships and Prizes that are awarded currently are as follows. Entitlements to 
scholarships are according to the criteria for Prizes and Scholarships. 
 

 Title of the Scholarship prize 

1.  Kiriwaththuduwe Sri Pannasara prize 

2.  The Most Venerable Sirimalwaththe Ananda Mahanayaka Commemorative Prize 

3.  Hejohn Scholarship Fund 

4.  Miyulin Liyanage Commemoration Prize 

5.  Most Honorable Pimbure Sri Wageeshwara and Kalukondayawe Sri Pragnasekara Mahanayaka 
Prize 

6.  Ven. Dr. Thumbulle Seelakkhanda Stavira Prize 

7.  Aludeniye Pannananda Mahanayaka Commemorative Prize on  Pali Grammar  

8.  Most Venerable Moratuwe ShahsanarathanaAnunayaka Thero Commemorative Prize 

9.  Most Venerable Werellane Wimalatissa Nayaka thero Commemorative Prize 

10.  Venerable Witharandeniye Chandajothi Nayaka thero Commemorative Prize 

11.  Proffessor Oliver Abenayake Prize 

12.  Ven. Banagala Upathissa Nayaka Thero Scholarship Fund 

13.  Ven. Thich Thien Son Commendation Prize for Pali 

14.  NICHREN SHU Scholarship 

15.  H.M.Tissera Commemorative Prize 

16.  Mahopadyaya Prize Fund 

17.  Fransis Hewaidana Prize  

18.  Sri Sucharitha Prize 

19.  The Kumbuke Don Sanis Appuhamy and Wanniarachchilage Josthina Fonseka Commemorative 
Prize 

20.  H.S Cooray Prize For Skills Displayed at the M.A.Degree Study Programme 

21.  P. Subhasinghe Prize 

22.  Muhandiram M.G. Perera And Mrs. Perera Commomaration Scholarship 

23.  H.M.Gunathilake Bandara Herath and G.M.R.Punchi Menike Scholarship 

24.  Jioun Fund for research and Publications on Buddhism 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cost per Student  

Scholarships and Prizes 
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 Mahapola/Bursary Calander for year 2014 
 

Mahapola Monthly – Rs. 2500/- 
Bursary Monthly    – Rs. 2000/- 

 

Month Date 
January 22 

February 18 

March 13 

April 29 

May 22 

June 13 

July * 

August * 

September 09 

October 14 

November 18 

December 09 
 
 

*   Duration for which the University was closed 
 

 

 No. of students who obtained Mahapola Scholarship in the year 2014  
 

First Year Students of 2013 - 19 

Second Year Students of 2012 - 21 

Third Year Students of 2011 - 18 

Fourth Year Students of 2011 - 11 

 

 No. of students who obtained Bursary in the year 2013  
 

First Year Students of 2013  -  68 

Second Year Students of 2012  -  77 

Third Year Students of 2011  -  59 

Fourth Year Students of 2011  -  32 

 
 
 

Mahapola Scholarships 
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Year  Recurrent Provisions in Millions Capital provisions in Millions 

1982 0.03 0.05 

1983 0.15 0.02 

1984 0.23 0.04 

1985 0.32 0.04 

1986 0.38 0.06 

1987 0.37 0.02 

1988 0.35 0.05 

1989 0.39 0.01 

1990 0.65 0.004 

1991 0.72 0.31 

1992 0.82 0.32 

1993 1.04 0.08 

1994 1.20 0.09 

1995 1.28 0.20 

1996 1.22 0.43 

1997 1.37  2.0 

1998 1.67 1.37 

1999 1.78 0.51 

2000 1.87 0.49 

2001 2.30 0.38 

2002 22.10 7.00 

2003 27.74 11.39 

2004 30.50 69.913 

2005 38.00 180.00 

2006 58.50 180.00 

2007 66.80 133.00 

2008 68.90 130.00 

2009 79.34 127.50 

2010 82.17 142.50 

2011 83.50 161.184 

2012 119.3 100.5 

2013 134.770 80.00 

2014 165.48 113.00 

 
 
 

Provisions Allocated for the University from 1982 to 2014 
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Capital Expenditure 2014 
 

Furniture 7,707,093.00 

Equipment 18,234,317.00 

Books, papers and  periodicals 1,072,062.00 

Rehabilitation and development of Capital assets- equipment  9,339,864.00 

Skills development 6,268,364.00 

Conduction of gardening activities of the foreign Students’ hostels 2,357,591.84 

Project on purifying and distributing the waste water of the hostel and 
the cafeteria 

1,652,090.09 

PABX Telephone system that connects faculty administration, hostel 
premises and the main administrative building complex of the 
Homagama University.  

192,360.00 

Repairing the boundary wall around the hostel premises and the other 
borders of the faculty including the library and the faculty 
administrative building  

391,806.01 

Repairing the building of the English Unit and the building parallel to 
it. 

354,682.66 

Repairing the faculty administrative building 13,527,746.97 

Conducting repairs on the four storied building of the Post Graduate 
and External examination studies center 

9,340,103.81 

Conducting repairs on the shrine room and its premises 1,621,405.00 

Conducting repairs on the lecturer’s hostels. 268,323.79 

Erection of a 2 feet boundary wall for the newly acquired land of 2 
acres of the University  

5,298,204.12 

Repairing the boundary wall of the Administrative building 392,581.82 

Local Students’ hostels 14, 508.18 

Estimated expenditure of Buildings and vehicles 1,749,762.00 

New land  20,202,311.00 

Arranging a book storing facility in the faculty administrative building 158,140.42 

Construction of the Security guards’ room 396,300.00 

CECB data system 126,000.00 

Repairing the roof of the administrative building 45,640.00 

 
         100,711,257.71 

 
 

Capital Estimate of the year 2014                    Rs.113, 
000,000.00  

  Actual expenditure percentage                                                                                                       89% 
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Recurrent and Capital Expenditure of the University (Rs.) 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Recurrent 
Expenditure 

95"287"314 126"830"169 142"270"681 150"985"387 179"397"137 

Capital 
Expenditure  

35"250"595 23"637"554 17"635"620 28"905"471 100"711"258 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject                 2013 (Rs.)                      2014 (Rs.) 

A. Personnel emoluments  99,042,006 124,694,004 

B. Travel Expenditure Local/Abroad 988,362 801,021 

C. Supplies 9,328,514 11,848,203 

D. Maintenance 3,750,366 3,408,479 

E. Services on Service Agreements 7,950,072 9,762,974 

F. Other  29,926,067 28,882,456 

Total 150,985,387 179,397,137 

-  Recurrent Expenditure 

-  Capital Expenditure 

Particulars regarding Recurrent Expenditure 
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Year 2013  

Subject Estimate (Rs.) Expenditure (Rs.) 
Balance / Excess 

Amount (Rs.) 

Recurrent Expenditure 

(Including Extra 

Provisions) 

134,770,000 150,985,387 (14,818,313) 

Capital Expenditure 80,000,000 28,905,471 42,958,256 

Total 214,770,000 179,890,858 34,879,142 

 
 

Year 2014  

Subject Estimate (Rs.) Expenditure (Rs.) 
Balance / Excess 

Amount (Rs.) 

Recurrent Expenditure 

(Including Extra 

Provisions) 

165,485,000 179,397,137 (13,912,137) 
 

Capital Expenditure 113,000,000 100,711,258 12,288,742 

Total 278,485,000 280,104,395 (1,623,395) 

Particulars regarding Financial Progress (Expenditure) 
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Buddhist and Pali University of Sri lanka  
Financial Performance Statement for the year ended on 31 December2014 

 

 
Description Notes 

2014 2013 

External Internal Total   

  Income   Rs.  Rs. Rs.  Rs. 

    Government aid for recurrent expenditure 02  -    165,485,000 165,485,000 134,770,000 

    Income earned by the University           

Registration fees  - First Degrees    256,363 195,758 452,121 1,231,088 

           - Diplomas     1,064,122                   -    1,064,122 891,530 

                              - Post graduate Degrees    371,000                   -    371,000 863,643 

    Tutoring Fees       - First Degrees                   -    452,574 452,574 720,783 

Examination fees - First Degrees    2,405,033 63,850 2,468,883 2,980,276 

           - Diplomas     1,360,308                   -    1,360,308 1,105,225 

                              - Post graduate Degrees    326,500                  -    326,500 1,134,510 

      Counseling fees – Post Graduate         Degrees   785,071                  -    785,071        217,778  

      Certificate fees   300,550 8,405 308,955 67,230 

     
  Application Forms fees   

 
363,564 

 
87,760 

 
451,324 

 
718,595 

      Hostel fees                  -    283,200 283,200 274,050 

      Sale of Publications   135,430                  -    135,430 145,790 

      Loan and Advance Interests                  -    118,148 118,148 116,338  

      Income from sale of condemned goods                  -                     -                     -          114,710  

      Income from property   4,700 60,600 65,300 149,000  

      Assorted Earnings 03 364,930 699,798 1,064,728 1,285,178 

      Registration fees for Convocations                   -                     -                      -           959,872  
      Alignment of State Provisions Account with the 
Income                   -    6,820,000 6,820,000 6,726,667  

      Alignment of capital provisions with the income                   -    49,163,007 49,163,007 42,971,516  
      Alignment of capital provisions with the income  
                                   (External Projects)                  -    358,992 358,992 350,064  

      Alignment of skills development with the income                   -    2,493,160 2,493,160 588,588  

      Income generated from external projects 04 10,921,822    10,921,822 9,708,948  

      Investment income  05                 -    1,061,907 1,061,907                  -    

      Removal of vehicles Account 
 

                  -                       -                        -    
          

1,159,999  

    18,659,393  227,352,159  246,011,552  209,251,378  
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  Notes 2014 
2013 

    External Internal Total 

  Balance  brought forth    18,659,393  227,352,159  246,011,552  209,251,378  

Reduced - Expenditure           

Personnel emoluments  06 1,089,900 123,604,104 124,694,004 99,042,006 

Machine Operator Duties                  -    30,975 30,975                     -    

Travelling Expenses  07 145,884 655,137 801,021 988,362 

Supplies 08 236,308 11,611,895 11,848,203 9,328,514 

Maintenance Expenditure  09 209,211 3,199,268 3,408,479 3,750,366 

Services on Agreement 10 1,591,552 8,171,422 9,762,974 7,950,072 

Allowances for External Lecturers                   -    2,305,073 2,305,073 3,368,354 

Scholarships                   -    4,266,100 4,266,100 2,210,900 

Mahapola Scholarship  Treasury contribu.                   -    57,150 57,150 85,900 

Notice Charges   381,119 1,024,985 1,406,104 1,638,236 

Security Services                  -    8,166,945 8,166,945 8,711,511 

Cleaning Services                -    4,950,136 4,950,136 4,764,404 

Staff Training and Development                  -               10,164  10,164                     -    

Workshops and Seminars                    -    99,700 99,700 172,068 

Losses and Written offs                   -    95,426 95,426                     -    

Auditing charges                   -    400,000  400,000 400,000 
Charges for Administrative boards and sub 

committees  11 71,849       1,764,104  1,835,953 1,480,840 

Examination expenses    99,936 2,083,360 2,183,296 2,029,564 

Contributions and membership fees (local)                  -    55,600 55,600 100,000 
Contributions and membership fees 

(foreign)                   -    317,512 317,512                     -    

Leave Warrant charges                   -    130,975 130,975 129,925 

Convocation expenses                   -                       -    0 2,479,561 

Legal expenses                    -    954,918 954,918 
            

669,000  

Translation charges                   -    59,367 59,367                     -    

Charges for disciplinary inquiries                    -    50,237 50,237                     -    

Other Recurrent Expenditure 12 32,133 1,474,692 1,506,825 1,685,804 

    3,857,892 175,539,245 179,397,137 150,985,387 

Diminutions   358,992 60,103,024 60,462,016 52,065,691 

External Project Expenses  13 8,241,764                    -    8,241,764 8,100,425 

Nation Building Tax    536,696                    -    536,696 
            

399,882  

Total Expenditure   12,995,344 235,642,269 248,637,613 211,551,385 

Surplus/ Deficit   
     
5,664,049  

     
(8,290,110) 

     
(2,626,061) 

      
(2,300,007) 

Balance brought forth from previous year   
       
(417,723) 

 
(287,620,704) 

 
(288,038,427) 

  
(285,738,420) 

     Balance brought forth   
     
5,246,326  

 
(295,910,814) 

 
(290,664,488) 

  
(288,038,427) 

Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka 
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The cost incurred in excess to the estimated cost has been settled by the income of the 

University. 

 

 

Estimated Actual Income and Expenditure Analysis of Year 2014 

 

Description 
Estimate  

Rs. 

Income/ 
Expenditure  

RS. 

Difference  
Rs. 

Percentage 
Rs. 

  Income       
 

 Government aid for recurrent expenditure 165,485,000 165,485,000                   -    - 

    Income earned by the University   
 

  
 

Registration fees  - First Degrees  1,300,000 452,121 (847,879) (65.22) 

           - Diplomas   770,000 1,064,122       294,122  38.20 

                              - Post Graduate Degrees  200,000 371,000       171,000  85.50 

    Tutoring Fees        - First Degrees 2,100,000 452,574   (1,647,426) (78.45) 

Examination fees  - First Degrees  1,500,000 2,468,883       968,883  64.59 

           - Diplomas   2,000,000 1,360,308     (639,692) (31.98) 

                               - Post Graduate Degrees  600,000 326,500      (273,500) (45.58) 

      Counseling fees   - Post Graduate         Degrees 400,000 785,071        385,071  96.27 

      Hostel fees 1,000,000 283,200      (716,800) (71.68) 

      Sale of Publications 430,000 135,430      (294,570) (68.50) 

      Loan and Advance Interests 100,000 118,148          18,148  18.15 

      Income from sale of condemned goods                     -                     -                      -    - 

      Income from property 100,000 65,300        (34,700) (34.70) 

      Assorted Earnings 2,000,000 1,064,728     (935,272) (46.76) 

      Charges for certificates 500,000 308,955      (191,045) (38.21) 

      Application form charges 500,000 451,324        (48,676) (9.74) 

      Income from Investments                     -    514,758        514,758  100.00 

       Income from Investments - Mahopadyaya Fund                                                     -    547,149        547,149  100.00 

 
178,985,000 176,254,571   (2,730,429) 

 
Expenditure 

  
  

 
Personnel emoluments  108,185,000 124,694,004 (16,509,004) (15.26) 

Travelling Expenses  750,000 801,021       (51,021) (6.80) 

Supplies 10,950,000 11,848,203      (898,203) (8.20) 

Maintenance expenses 6,600,000 3,408,479     3,191,521  48.42 

Services on Agreement 9,350,000 9,762,974      (412,974) (4.42) 

Allowances for External Lecturers 1,500,000 2,305,073      (805,073) (53.67) 
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Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka 

Financial Position Statement of as at 31st December 2014 

Description Notes 2014 2013 

    Rs  Rs  
Assets       
Non – Current  Assets       
Property Premises and Equipments 14 814,158,415 495,367,359 

    814,158,415 495,367,359 
Work on Progress   12,698,921 - 
Skills Development 15 6,470,032 2,694,828 

Investments 16 32,117,740 24,874,797 

    865,445,108 522,936,984 
Current Assets       
Balance stock of the stores - 3,940,510 2,597,428 
Stock of Publications - 378,680 506,416 
Employee Loans and various Advances 17 4,227,543 3,581,559 
Miscellaneous deposits  18 510,838 509,873 
Capital Advances 19 2,734,193 8,692,014 
Interests to be received 20 526,904 729,093 
Early payments 21 183,525 546,444 
Monies and equivalents 22 22,150,743 3,217,355 

    34,652,936 20,380,182 

Total Assets   900,098,044 543,317,166 

        
Claims and responsibilities       
Capital Donations spent - 745,617,739        696,466,695  
Capital Donations unspent  23 22,170,548           9,881,805  
External Projects - Capital - 1,011,163           1,169,994  
Other Capital Donations 24 1,100,000           1,100,000  
Capital Donations Of the State - 13,456,666 20,276,666  
Asset revaluation reserve  - 305,034,734          10,564,277  

    1,088,390,850 739,459,437 
Accumulated Balance - (281,641,789)    (279,015,728) 
Reserved Funds 25 29,938,351          24,189,531  

Capital Donations 26 11,924,550          11,671,182  
Allocation of service bonuses 27 24,479,938          22,575,097  
Allocations for stock damages - 84,230                84,230  
Suspended Income 28 1,833,280           1,249,213  
Allocation for Law suits    1,019,700           1,019,700  

 

  69,280,049 60,788,953 
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Description Notes 2014 2013 

Current  liabilities       
Deposits 29 907,938              655,223  
    fldka;%d;a u; r|jd .ekSï 30 14,200,551          11,971,616  
Miscellaneous Creditors  31 1,435,022              201,025  
Accumulated Expenses 32 5,500,359           3,322,604  
Accumulated Expenses- External Projects 33 2,025,064           5,934,036  

    24,068,934       22,084,504  

Total Entitlements and Liabilities   900,098,044 543,317,166 

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  Bursar 
 

  20.02.2015 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
  The Administrative Board is under the liability of preparing  and presenting the above financial 

statements and the following signatures were placed on behalf of the administrative board 

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

  Ven.Prof.Gallelle Sumanasiri Stavira 
 

R.A.Piyaratne 
 Mahopadyaya 

 
Registrar 

 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
  Buddhist And Pali University of Sri Lanka 

 
  20.02.2015 
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Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka 

Change in Net Assets/Equity Statement for the Year ended on 31st December 2014 

  

Accumulated 
fund  
Rs.  

2013 

Revaluation reserve  
Rs. 

Total 
Rs. 

Capital Donations 
spent  

Rs. 

Capital Donations 
unspent 

Balance as at 01.01.2013   (288,755,586)     710,972,724                  3,862,277               3,419,996            429,499,411  

Income/ Collections during the year                           -                               -                  34,925,000               7,144,281             42,069,281  

Expenditure during the year                           -              28,905,471             (28,905,471)                             -                                -  

Amortization alignment                          -           (43,411,500)                                 -                                -              (43,411,500) 

Alignments of previous year 12,039,865                             -                                    -                                -                12,039,865  

Deficit of year 2013        (2,300,007)                            -                                    -                                -               (2,300,007) 

Balance as at 01.01.2014    (279,015,728)         696,466,695                  9,881,806             10,564,277           437,897,050  

Income/ Collections during the year                           -                               -                113,000,000            294,470,457            407,470,457  

Expenditure during the year                          -           100,711,258            (100,711,258)                            -                                -    

Amortization alignment                           -           (51,560,214)                                 -                              -              (51,560,214) 

Alignments of previous year                           -                               -                                    -                                -                                -    

Surplus/ Deficit of year 2013        (2,626,061)                            -                                    -                               -               (2,626,061) 

      (281,641,789)          745,617,739                22,170,548           305,034,734           791,181,232  
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Buddist and Pali University of Sri Lanka 

Cash flow Statement for the year ended on 31.12.2014 

 

 

2014 2013 

 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Operational Activities  

 

    Surplus for the Year (Deficit) 

 

(2,626,061)  (2,300,007) 

 

Adjustments for Non-financial Items  

 

   

Provisions for Depreciation in the Year  60,462,017  52,065,691  

Allocations for Gratuity  2,015,400  389,012  

Writing off of Losses and Damages  95,462  272,529  

Adjustment to profit 12,890    

Writing off of Provisions for Depreciation in the 

Year 

( 

58,235,159) 4,350,574 (50,636,835) 2,090,397 

Before the Working Capital  Changes      

Operational Surplus/Deficit  1,724,513  209,610 

     

Working Capital  Changes     

 

    

Stock Balance at the Warehouse (1,343,082)  16,261  

Stock of publications 127,736  3,960  

Loans and Advances of Employees  (645,984)  (382,733)  

Miscellaneous  Deposits (965)  11,965  

Capital Advances 5,957821  (8,136,273)  

Interests Receivable 202,189  (381,433) 

 Pay as You Earn Receivable     349,053  

Advance Payments 362,919  (106,218)  

Deposits  252,715  (187,210)  

Retaining on Contracts 2,228,935  (280,560)  

Miscellaneous Creditors 1,233,997  (4,783)  

Security deposits 2,177,755  907,299  

Accrued Expenses (3,908,972) 6,645,064 5,934,036 (2,256,645) 

Cash Flow generated from Operational 

Activities   8,369,577  (2,466,255) 

Payment of Gratuities   (110,560)  (458,173) 

Net Cash Flow generated from Operational 

Activities  8,259,017  (2,924,428) 
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 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

 

Balance B/F  8,259,017  (2,924,428) 

 

 

Investment Activities  

     

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment  (82,289,457)  (26,780,721)  

Work on progress (12,698,921)    

Invested Money  (7,242,943)  (8,125,828)  

Skill Development  (6,268,364)  (1,383,153)  

External Projects – Capital (158,831)  (170,372)  

Rehabilitation and Improvement of Capital 

Assets   (108,658,516) (198,750) (36,658,824) 

  

   

Financial Activities 

 

 

   

Capital Grants   (88,539)  

Reserves for law suits   1,019,700  

Adjustment to profit   10,228,405  

Capital Grants 113,000,000  34,925,000  

Reserved Funds 5,748,820  4,088,099  

Deferred income 584,067  (18,156,058)  

Revalued Profits  119,332,887 1,159,999 33,176,606 

     

Net Increase/Decrease in Money and Money 

Equivalents   18,933,388  (6,406,646) 

 

    

Balance of Money and Money Equivalents at 

the beginning of the Year.    3,217,355  9,624,001 

Balance of Money and Money Equivalents at 

the end of the Year.    (22,1550,743)  (3,217,355) 

 

 

 

(18,933,388)  
6,406,646 

 

 

 

    

   

              

Bursar 

 

 



Annual Report 2014 

 

-  Buddhist and Pali University Of Sri Lanka - 

 

The Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka  
 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st December 2014.  

1) Specific Accounting Principles  

1.1 General Principals  

1.1.1 Institutional Entity 

The Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka has been established by the 

Act No.74 of 1981 and the Act has been amended by the Act 

(Amendment) No. 37 of 1995. The Study Unit of the University is situated 

in Pitipana North, Gurulugomi Mawatha, Homagama while its 

Administration building is located at No. 37 of Moragahahena Road, 

Pitipana, Homagama. The External Examinations and Post Graduate 

Studies Centre of the Uniersity is situated at No.214 of Bauddhaloka 

Mawatha, Colombo 07. 

    
 

  1.1.2 Fundamental Activities and the Nature of the Operations 

 

Vision 

 

To be the foremost and most excellent Buddhist University in the World. 

 

Statement of Mission  

 

Bestowing the World with Versatile Buddhist Missionaries and Scholars 
capable of promoting and fostering in Sri Lanka as well as in Foreign 
Countries the Philosophy of Life, which is perspicuous by the Dhamma of 
the Lord-Buddha and well disciplined with the influence of the Buddhist 
Doctrine, Pali Language and the Wisdom achieved on the related Subjects 
and perfected with different Skills. 
 
This University has been established under the Ministry of Higher 
Education and is mainly operated with the Provisions of the Government. 
 
The University where local lay and clergy students as well as foreign 
clergy students are following Degree Courses is comprised of two 
Faculties, namely, Buddhist Studies Faculty and Language Studies faculty.  
   

Students are consistently encouraged by the University to follow the Post 

Graduate Degrees and to conduct Researches.  
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  1.1.3 Basis of Preparation. 

  (a)        Statement of Conformity  

The Final Financial Statements have been prepared as per the Sri Lanka 

Public Service Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) and the Principles adopted 

in the previous years, the Financial Act No. 38 of 1971 and the 

Establishments Code have been made applicable whenever necessary. 

 

In addition, the following Circulars which have been made applicable to 

the University by the Administration Council of the University from time 

to time have been also used for the purpose of recording Accounts. 

    

* Public Administration Circulars and Public Financial Regulations. 

 

* Circulars issued by the University Grants Commission (UGC). 

 

* Circulars on the Principles of Public Enterprises.  

  

(b)        Basis of Estimation 

 

Estimations have not been made based on the change in the monetary 

value except in instances which have been specifically mentioned and the 

Financial Statements have been prepared on the Historical Cost Basis.  

                                                                                                                                             

(c) The Currency used in the preparation of the Financial Statements 

   

Values have been estimated in Rupees and Cents used in Sri Lanka and 

action has been taken to round off the Financial Statements to the last 

Rupee. 

  
 

1.2     Assets and Evaluation of assets  

 

  1.2.1. Identification of Assets 

  

(a) Assets have been reported to the value obtained subsequent to 

deducting the accumulated depreciation from the cost of assets such as 

Property, Plant and Equipment. 

   

(b)   These assets have been mentioned on the cost of purchasing or the cost 

of   construction including the basic expenditure incurred. 
 

 

1.2.2 Depreciation of Assets  

  (a) I.        Fixed Assets have been depreciated using the Straight-line Method as per 

the University Grants Commission Circular No. 649 and have been 
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recorded in the Balance Sheet on the Net Value. The percentage of 

depreciation of fixed Assets that have been depreciated is mentioned 

below.   

 1' Buildings   05% (Year 20) 

 2' Furniture and Fittings              10% (Year 10) 

 3' Office Equipment  20% (Year 05) 

 4' Library books and Magazines 20% (Year   05) 

 5' Motor Vehicles  20% (Year   05) 

 6' Cloaks                      20% (Year 05) 
 

II. Timely Adjustments have been made considering the period regarding 

the purchase/construction and disposal of assets in adjusting for 

depreciations of the assets that are identified. 

III. If assets are further utilized when the value of such assets have  become 

zero (0) level after the assets are depreciated, such assets are revalued 

and the value is recorded as Non- current Assets and the revaluation 

surplus is transferred to the Revaluation Reserve Account. 

IV.  The bus in the possession of the University has been revalued for Rs. 

750,000 in the year 2014 and the said value is added to the accounts. 

V.  The hostel for foreign students (Sarasavi Mandura), gifted by the Ministry 

of Higher education has been assigned over to the University by now. 

 

 

(b)    (1)  Actions are taken to write off within the five years starting from the year 

2012, the balance of the capital Grants Account of the Government 

commenced from the year 2011 in relation to the vehicles provided by 

the General Treasury in the year 2011 on the Hire Purchase Basis. 

             Rs. 

 2012    7,096,666.68 

 2013    6,660,000.00 

 2014    6,660,000.00 

 2015    6,660,000.00 

 2016    6,223,333.32 

 Total    33,300,000.00 

 

  (c) Buldings under the Turn key Project of the University  

 

 The contract of Rs. Million 512 for the construction of the Building complex of 

the University has been awarded to the Central Engineering Consultancy 

Bureau (C.E.C.B) under cabinet approval, and the final payment of those 

buildings have not yet been settled.  
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 The buildings which were constructed by the C.E.C.B. Institution for the 

University under the Turn key Basis and other supplies have been mentioned 

below.  
 

1. Lecture Hall building  

 2. Faculty Administration Building 

3. Administration Building 

 4. Library Building 

 5. Public Utilities Building 

 6. Stores and Maintenance Division 

 7. Auditorium Building        
    

1.2.3 Evaluation of Stocks. 

 

(1) The stock in the stores have been evaluated on the Purchased Price and 

the stocks are issued on First in First out Basis. 
    

(11) The relevant allocations have been made in the year 2012 for the slow 

moving items to the value of Rs.71, 594 and for Nonmoving items to the 

value of Rs.12, 635. 

 

1.2.4     Investments 

i. One Fixed Deposit and one Savings Account have been commenced for 

Fixed and Savings Accounts that existed separately for each Scholarship 

and Prize Funds which already existed for Scholarships and Prizes 

obtained by the University on the approval of the Administration Council. 

Scholarships are offered annually, based on the interest accrued in 

relation to the opening Deposit.  
 

ii. A new fixed deposit to the value of Rs. 1,620,000 has been initiated for 

Jiyun Buddhist Research and Publications Fund. 

 

iii. A new fixed deposit to the value of Rs. 5,250,000 has been initiated for 

the     Mahopadyaya Fund. 

 

iv. A Fixed Deposit to the value of Rs. 8,500,000 has been initiated from the 

income earned from External Examinations. 

 
v. A Fixed Deposit to the value of Rs. 550,000 has been initiated from the 

interests received from the investing of the Mahopadyaya Fund and the 

external project funds. 

 

vi. The amount of money allocated for the Funds for Medical Assistance will   

be deposited in Fixed Deposit Accounts and the interest earned from it 
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annually will be transferred to the University’s Recurrent Account to 

settle Recurrent Expenditure.  
 

1.3 Liabilities and Allocations 
 

(a)  The Retirement Gratuity Fund No. 12 of 1983 has been made applicable to the 

University and provisions have been allocated for the year 2011 for the payment of 

Service Gratuities. 
 

1.4 Contingency Liabilities 
  

The details regarding the cases filed against the University by the employees and 

external parties of the Buddhist and Pali University have been mentioned below. It is not 

possible to come into a definite conclusion regarding the value of the monetary 

liabilities since final judgments in relation to these cases have not yet been received. 

However, it has been assumed that it is possible to have financial liabilities in this regard.  
 

 Case No. Particulars regarding the Case The Present Situation 

01 MH/33/763/09 Requesting to reinstate in the service or 

to provide compensation. 

The case is pending. 

02 CA Writ  

318/2009 

Against filing accusations or against 

conducting disciplinary Procedures 

after being interdicted from the 

service. 

The Case is scheduled to be 

taken into trial session. 

03 CA Writ 

07/2012 

Against sending on retirement at the 

age over 58 years and 06 Months. 

The Case is scheduled to be 

taken into trial session. 

04 SC SPL 

75/2009 

Requesting to be reinstated in the Post 

of Clerk. 

The Case is scheduled to be 

taken into trial session. 

05 3663/13 Against sending on retirement at the 

age of 58 years and 06 Months. 

The Case is scheduled to be 

taken into trial session. 

06 HCALT 73/13 Appeal against the labor tribunal 

verdict   

The Case is scheduled to be 

given a verdict. 

07 CA Writ 236/14 Against being recruited to the post of 

Lecturer. 

The Case is scheduled to be 

settled. 

08 CA Writ 356/4 Against not being offered with the post 

of Faculty Head. 

The Case is scheduled to be 

objected. 

 

1.5.  The University has forwarded an appeal against the labor tribunal verdict at the end of 
Mr. R.M. Chandrasiri’s Case, to pay him a compensation. Since it was ordered to deposit 
the amount of Rs. 1,019,700, the compensation to be paid to him in the Attorney 
General’s Department in order to forward the appeal the amount of Rs. 1,019,700 has 
been deposited (The remaining amount apart from an amount of Rs.64,500.46 has been 
paid to Mr.R.M Chandrasiri by now, a cheque has been forwarded to the University from 
the Attorney General’s Department for the above amount of Rs. 64,500.46 , it has been 
recorded in accounts. 
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1.6 Development of Skills. 

 

(a)   ‘Bhikkhu Promotion Programme’ was implemented for Buddhist monks in admitting 

students to the Buddhist and Pali University. The expenditure incurred in that respect is 

considered as Capital Expenditure and recorded under Non- Current Expenditure. It has 

been decided to write off such Capital expenses within (from 2013) 3 years since the 

students admitted to the University leave the University within 3 years. 

(b) Expenditure incurred for the development of skills of the Non – academic and 

Academic Staff are considered as Capital Expenditure and recorded in Accounts under 

Skills Development It has been decided to write off the Capital expenditure in four years 

when it is not in conformity with the contract. 

 

1.7 Paying Taxes 
 

The university has been exempted from paying income tax under the section 7(b) of the Inland 

Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006. 

 

1.8 Identification of Sources of Income 

 

The income has been calculated on the accumulated basis and monetary basis when recorded 

in accounts. 

 
 

1.9 Expenditure 
 

Expenditure incurred for bursaries and Mahapola have been recorded in Accounts.  

Other expenses have been identified timely and recorded in Accounts. 

 



Annual Report 2014 

 

-  Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka - Page 85 

 

 

 

The Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka 

Employees’ Provident Fund  

Financial Performance Statement for the year ended on 31st December 2014 

     Description 
Notes 

2014 2013 

   Rs.  Rs. Rs. 
01.Income         

Treasury Bills interests   9,878,460    10,181,254  

Miscellaneous Receipts   -           15,465  

Seven Day notice deposit interests   46,007 9,924,467 - 

Approximate income     9,924,467  10,196,719  

          

Reduced Expenses         

    Auditing expenses   70,000         115,000  

    Other Expenses   -             3,750  

    70,000 70,000       118,750  

      9,854,467  10,077,969  

Reduced         

Income tax of the year     991,526    1,018,125  

Surplus after the Income tax     8,862,941    9,059,844  

          

          

Added         

Balance Brought forward from the 
previous year     7,300         13,276  

      8,870,241    9,073,120  

          

Reduced         

Appropriations         

Interests for contributive accounts          

                  Employee   3,546,620      3,626,328  

                  Employer   5,319,929 8,866,549    5,439,492  

      
 

   9,065,820  

          

     Balance brought forth      3,692           7,300  
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The Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka 
Employees’ Provident Fund 

Financial Position  Statement as at 31st December 2014  
 

     Particulars 
Notes 

2014 2013 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. 

01. Liabilities          
Contributory Account – Employees   63,200,837       52,951,132  
Contributory Account – Employers   94,732,356       79,428,644  

    157,933,193 157,933,193   132,379,776  
02. Reserves          

     Accumulated Balance      3,692              7,300  

      157,936,885   132,387,076  

      Representing         
03. Long Term Assets         

      Treasury Bills 
 

115,122,702       92,290,172  
     Loans of Employees 01 39,050,096       37,266,598  

    154,172,798 154,172,798   129,556,770  

04. Current Assets      2,000,000   
     Interests Receivable          
     Retaining Taxes    2,727,115         3,007,963  
     Bank Balance    304,480         1,364,121  

    3,031,595         4,372,084  

03. Less:          
    Current Liabilities          
     Accrued Expenses    338,955            268,956  
     Miscellaneous Creditors  02 928,553         1,272,822  

    1,267,508         1,541,778  

     Net Current Assets    1,764,087 1,764,087       2,830,306  

      157,936,885   132,387,076  

      
      

   20.02.2015 
The Board of Administration is responsible for the preparation and submission of the Financial 
Statements mentioned above and I have signed below for the Board of Administration.    
 
 Ven.Professor.Gallelle Sumanasiri Stavira                                                             R.A. Piyaratne  
Mahopadyaya                                                                                                         Registrar   
 
Buddhist And Pali University of Sri lanka 
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          The Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka, Employees’ Provident Fund 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended on 31st December 2013 

 

 
 

 
2014 2013 

 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Operational Activities  
    Surplus for the Year  
 

8,862,941   9,059,844 

     Working Capital  Changes 
    Interests Receivable 280,848 

 
27,688 

 Taxes for retaining - 

 
61,789 

 Accrued expenses 69,999 

 
24,733 

 Miscellaneous  Creditors (344,269)              6,578 (1,168,524) (1,054,314) 

Cash Flow generated from Operational 
Activities   8,869,519  8,005,530 

Payments for contributory accounts    (8,866,549)  (9,065,820) 

Net Cash Flow generated from Operational 
Activities               2,970  (1,060,290) 

     

Investment Activities      

Treasury Bills (22,832,530) 
 

    
(15,492,203) 

 Employee Loans (1,783,498) 
 

(7,604,368) 
 Seven day Notices (2,000,000) (26,616,028) - (23,096,571) 

 
 (26,612,058)  (24,156,861) 

Financial Activities     

Contributory Accounts  25,553,417  21,543,494 

Net Increase/Decrease in Money and Money 
Equivalents   (1,059,641)   (2,613,367) 

Balance of Money and Money Equivalents at 
the beginning of the Year.   

 
1,364,121 

 
3,977,488 

Balance of Money and Money Equivalents at 
the end of the Year.   

 
(304,480)  (1,364,121) 

 
 
 

 
     1,059,641 

 
     2,613,367 

     

   

Bursar 
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The Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka  
 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st December 2013.  

1) Specific Accounting Principles  

1.1 General Principals  

1.1.1 Institutional Entity 

The Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka has been established by the 

Act No.74 of 1981 and the Act has been amended by the Act 

(Amendment) No. 37 of 1995. The Employees’ Provident Fund is 

mentioned on Chapter VI of the Sri Lanka Buddhist and Pali University Act 

No.74 of 1981 

    
 

  1.1.2 Fundamental Activities and the Nature of the Operations 

 

Vision 

 

To be the foremost and the most excellent Buddhist University in the 

World. 

 

Statement of Mission  

 

Bestowing the World with Versatile Buddhist Missionaries and Scholars 
capable of promoting and fostering in Sri Lanka as well as in Foreign 
Countries the Philosophy of Life, which is perspicuous by the Dhamma of 
the Lord-Buddha and well-disciplined with the influence of the Buddhist 
Doctrine, Pali Language and the Wisdom achieved on the related Subjects 
and perfected with different Skills. 
 
This University has been established under the Ministry of Higher 
Education and is mainly operated on the Provisions of the Government. 
 
The University where local lay and clergy students as well as foreign 
clergy students are following Degree Courses comprises of two Faculties, 
namely, Buddhist Studies Faculty and Language Studies faculty.  
   

Students are consistently encouraged by the University to follow the Post 

Graduate Degrees and to conduct Researches.  

 

 

 

 

 



Annual Report 2014 

 

-  Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka - Page 89 

  1.1.3 Basis of Preparation. 

 

  (a) Statement of Conformity  

The Final Financial Statements have been prepared as per the Sri Lanka 

Public Service Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) and the Principles adopted 

in the previous years have been made applicable whenever necessary. 

 

In addition, the following Circulars which have been made applicable to 

the University by the Administration Council of the University from time 

to time have been also used for the purpose of recording Accounts. 

    

* Circulars issued by the University Grants Commission (UGC). 

 

(b) Basis of Estimation 

 

Estimations have not been made based on the change in the monetary 

value except in instances which have been specifically mentioned and the 

Financial Statements have been prepared on the Historical Cost Basis.  

                                                                                                                                             

(c) The Currency used in the preparation of the Financial Statements 

   

Values have been estimated in Rupees and Cents used in Sri Lanka and 

action has been taken to round off the Financial Statements to the last 

Rupee. 

 

 (d) Other points 

 

i. Sub Total of the Employee contributions and the contributions of the 

University for the Employee Provident Fund of the University is 

deposited monthly in the Account of the Employee Provident Fund. 

The money thus collected is used to grant loans to employees and a 

certain amount is retained in the account to grant an amount to 

employees on retirement or quitting employment and the rest is 

invested in Treasury Bills.  

ii. From these investment Accounts, relevant expenses are deducted 

from the annual benefit gained during the year and the rest is 

distributed evenly among the employees. 

iii. An interest is not levied from the employees when granting employee 

loans, at the end of the year the loan balance is reduced and interest 

is counted for only for the balance amount of money. 
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1. Buddhist and Pali College of Singapore 

30,Jalan Eunos, Singapore, 419495 
 

2. Samdhi Vihara at Shah Alam (The Buddhist Institute) -  Malaysia 

Selangor, 72, Jalan Kucai Dua,Taman Lian Hoe,  58000, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. 
 

3. Persatuan Sasana Abhiwurdhi Wardhana Maha Vihara -  Malaysia 

Buddhist Maha Vihara, 123, Jalan Berhala Brickfields, 50470 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. 
 

4. Pagoda Phat Hue  -  Germany (Buddhist Wisdom) 

Pagoda Phat Hue Hanauer 443, 60314, Frankfurt Am Main, Germany 
 

5. Dhammzentrum Nyanaponika -  Austria (Europe) 

Auhofstrasse 78, A- 1130 Vienna, Austria (Europe) 
 

6. Compassian Buddhit Institute, Bangaladesh. 

BTS Complex, Kadalpur, Raozan, Chittagong, 4340, Bangladesh 
 

7. Danggook Buddhist Chaonbop College -  Korea 

830- 58, Beomil 2 dong, Dong- gu,Busan, Republic of Koria 
 

8. Buddhist and Pali College - USA 

3401 N4th treet, Minneapolis, MN 55412, USA 
 

9. International College of Buddhist Studies -  UK 

309- 311,Kingsbury Road,London Nwg 9 PE, United Kingdom 
 

10. Dharma Vijaya Buddhist Vihara,Inc -  Los Angeles 

1847 Crenshaw Blvd, Los Angeles, CA 90019 
 

11. Head of Scotlant's Buddhist Vihara - UK 

Caldercuilt Road, Maryhill Park,Glasgow, G20 6AD,UK 
 

12. Aloka Vihara Foundation Limited of Hong Kong 

3/F, 223 Sai Yee Street, Prince Edward Kowloon, Hong Kong 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Foreign Affiliated Institutions - 2014 
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  Professor, Venerable Neluwe Sumanawanshsha Thero 

 

1. ‘Rgveda – Chandrarathnanjalee’ Ven. Thalpitiye Chandarathana Nahimi Felicitation 

Academic Compendium - 2014   

2. ‘The outset and development of Sanskrit Prose - Chandrarathnanjalee’ Ven. Thalpitiye 

Chandarathana Nahimi Felicitation Academic Compendium - 2014   

3. ‘Sanskrit Champu Poetry, Aaradya’ – Ven. Bogambara Rathanajothi Nahimi Felicitation 

Dhamma Academic Compendium   

4. Ramayan Sundara Kanda 14, 15 Sarga Vyakya – Vidyodaya Dhamma Academic 

Compendium. 

5. Katopaniushad, Prashnopanishad and Shvethashvathara Upanishad – Vidyodalankara 

Academic Compendium, Study of Upanishads. 

 
 

 Professor, Venerable Waavve Dhammarakhkhitha Thero :- 

1. ‘Social Philosophy in the Buddhist stream of thinking’ – ‘Dhamma University, Diploma 

Course in Buddhism’, a publication of the Buddhist and Pali University of Sri lanka and the 

Department of Buddhist Studies, 2014 

 

2. Newspaper articles 

17th Commemoration of the most venerable Poththewela Pannasara Mahanayaka Thero. 

 

3. Researches 

Acting as the advisor of the Post Graduate Degree Examination on Buddhist Studies 

1. Elaborate essay topics. 

 An Investigative study on the applicability of Buddhism in resolving issues. 

 An inquiry in to the guidance provided by Buddhism in building a household 

society. 

 Elaborate essay topic – A Study on being, Samsara and greed 

 
 

 Senior lecturer, Mr. Samanatha Illangakoon 

Paper Presentations 

01. Psychology of Anatta ; International Conference on Dharma - Dhamma, India - Sri Lanka 

Foundation, Bhophal, India, 2014 March 
 

Attachment - I 

 

Researches and Publications of the Academic Staff - 2014 
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02. Buddhist Religious Ecological Concepts, International Buddhist Conference of united 

Nations Day of Vesak 2014, Bai Dinh Temple Convention Centre, Ninh Binh Province, 

Vietnam, 2014 May. 

 

Publications  

01. Niwedani - Editor 

02. Daham Sarasaviya Journal - Editor 

       Research Articles  

01. Religious, Philosophical and culturel perspectives on Gerontology, Bhakthanjali Journal, 

2014. 

02. Pre - Buddhistic Japanese Culture and Advent of Buddhism, Buddhist Culture in Asia 

Journal, 2014  

03. Buddhist Epistemological Differences from other Indian Epistemological Teachings, 

Buddhist and Pali Studies Journal, 2014  

04. Theoretical Approaches on Religion; An introduction, Sudakara Journal, 2014 

05. Concept in Abhidhamma and Basics in Buddhist Psychology, Daham Sarasaviya Journal, 

2014. 

06. Theories on Gerontology, Wadihiti Journal, Department of Social Services, 2014 

 

 Venerable Gonadeniye Pannarathana Thero :- 

01.  An Analysis according to Dhamma on the existence and termination of the five sense 

organs  - 2014 
 

02.  The reality of Kamachchanda and the path to Nibbana – Abhisamachara , The Chairman of 

the  Sri Lanka Amarapura  Maha Sangha Sabha, most Venerable Dodampahala Chandrasiri 

Mahanayaka Thero Felicitation Compendium - 2014 

 
03.  An investigative study on the forward steps of Buddhism on the subject of Dhyana 

Ssamapaththi among other contemporary Philosophies - Pali Academic Compendium, Pali 

Studies Unit, Buddhist and Pali university of Sri Lanka -  2014 

 
04. Kin Pana Manomayan Kaayanruke Nu Bo Kathan Than Abhinimithun Sakkha – Vidyodhaya 

Dhamma Academic Compendium, Festschrift volume to commemorate the 150th Birth 

Anniversary of Srimath Anagarika Dharmapala -  2014 

 
05. An investigative study on the Anapanasathi meditation with references to Tipitaka 

literature – Gnanopayini , Academic Compendium to commemorate the 150th anniversary 

of the Sri lanka Ramanna Nikaya -  2014 
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 Senior lecturer, Venerable Moragollagama Uparathana Thero 

01. A review on the origin and the expansion of Buddhist rituals, Dhamma Acadamic 

Compendium to Commemorate the Sarana, Narammala Ganegoda, Kottaptiya Vihara 

Generations and Rammuthugala Saranaala Maahimi - 2014  

 

02. Social contributions and current trends of  the concept of Gods – Sri 

Sugathavanssabhinandana Paramananda prathibha, Academic Compendium, Sri 

Paramananda Purana Vihara - 2014 

 

03.  The importance of Pirith chant as a Buddhist therapist method of psychology - 2014 

 

04. An Introduction to Pali Milindapanha Authorship, Time, Place and the Language of the 

Original text,  Pali Academic Compendium - 2014 

 

05. The Sunyata Concept of Madyamaka and the Middle Path in Theravada Buddhism” - 2nd 

International Conference on Dharma - Dhamma Nature, Source and Relevance of Dharma - 

Dhamma Traditions, Abstracts - 2014 

 

06. The International Relationship Between Sri Lanka and Myanmar through 

Manavulusandesaya as the first  Pali epistle sent to Myanmr from Sri Lanka 

 
 

 Professor, (Mrs) H.M.Y.V.K. Herath 

Articles published 

01. A study on the Characteristics of Buddha statues – Pravartana – Buddhist Society of Sri 
lanka Customs, Colombo 

02. Richard Leslie Brohier – Charana, Bhikku Society, University of Sri Jayawardanapura  
 
Articles to be published  
 
01. Madirigiriya Watadage and other archeological monuments – Buddhit and Pali University 

of Sri Lanka 
 
Presented Research  
 

    Presented a paper “THE CONCEPT OF THE TRIPLE STUPA AND THE RELIC STUPA IN SRI LANKA” 

with Ven. Galwewa Wimalakhanthi, Lecturer, Department of Social Sciences and 

Comparative Studeis, Bhiksu University of Sri Lanka 
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 Senior lecturer, Ms. M.A.C. Munasinghe 

01. Revision of the Buddhist culture of Asia (panahaduwe Yasassi Thero, Senior lecturer Mr.K.A. 

Weerasena) Ven. Warayaye Athula nayaka Thero Felicitation Acdemic Compendium, 

Research article (Buddhist Culture of Afghanistan)   

 
 

02. Complete article and summery of “Personalization of the Compassion of Gautama 

Buddha”for the Professional Development Program. 

 
 

03. Article for the “Gnanagavesi”Academic Compendium of the Pali and Buddhist Academic 

Association of the Ruhunu University. 
 

04. “Charana”, Academic Compendium of the Bhikku Society of the Jayewardenepura 

University,  The historical development and contemporary applicability of Gihi (household) 

Uposatha (in print),  

 
 

05. Forwarding an article, ‘An inquiry into the social background of the woman, as mentioned in 

the Rigveda’ for the “Bashaprabha” Academic Compendium to be launched by the Sanskrit 

Academic Unit of this University.  

 
   

06. Conducting the Academic Research “Human centeredness and Buddhism” for obtaining the 

research allowance. 

 
 

 Senior Professor, Venerable Wegama Piyarathana Thero 

Acadamic Articles 

1. The Service done by Ven. Welivita Sri Saranankara Sangharaja Thero to Pali literature and 

the Buddha Sasana.  

(An article Written for the Academic Compendium published by the Malwathu Maha 

Viharaya) 

2. A study on the the parts of Pali Tripitaka literature that are considered not to be Lord 

Buddha’s words. 

(Published on the Pali and Buddhist studies academic compendium Printed by the Asgiri 

Maha Viharaya) 

3. A study on the Holy Book of Pirith. 

4. Buddhist Way to emancipation. 

5. Linguistic characteristics of Veidic Culture presented in Pali Literature (Published in the 

Nenasa Academic Compendiumof year 2014 Printed by the Pirivena of Asgiriya Maha 

Viharaya. 

6. Hon. Anagarika Dharmapala , who awakened a whole nation 

7. The Holy Book of Piruwana or the Chatubhanawara Pali 

8. The Historic Bujaslena  Raja Maha Viharaya 
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9. Academic Article Series – 1 (Pali Language and Literature)  

10. Academic Article Series – 2 (Various) 

11. Vidyodaya Dhamma Academic Compendium (29th April 2014) edited. 

12. Pali Language : A Historical Study 

13. The Grammatical Tradition Reflected in Pali Commentaries (Submitted to be Printed) 

 
 

 Lecturer (Probationary), Venerable Panahaduwe Yasassi Thero 

Articles Published 
 

1. Historical background of the Sankassapura of Bharatha – Subharathi (Hewawasam 
Felicitation Academic Compendium Religious background of the Pre Buddhist era. 

 
2. Lay discipline of Hon. Dharmapala leading the way to a moralistic society. 

 
3. Necromancy connected with the Bhahirava concept.   

 
 

 Lecturer (Probationary), Venerable Ilukewela Dhammarathana Thero 

Articles 

1. The Social Enhancement Empowered by Buddhism. (Ven. Muwantanne Somavansa, Ed.) 

Sudakara: Felicitation in honour of Venarable Pamankada Indrajothi. 166-171  

 
2. An Early Buddhist Interpretation on Psycho-Physio Combination of the Being. 2nd 

International Conference at Sri Lanka International Buddhist Academy, 04th September, 

2014. Pallekele, Kandy. 

 
 

 Lecturer, Venerable Vitharandeniye Chandasiri Thero 

Research Articles 
1. Teacher Student role depicted in the Teravada Education Tradition. 

Buddhist Education Philosophical Studies, Most Venerable Kithalagama Nayaka thero 
felicitation Academic Compendium. 
 

2. Pali Poetry today and Kusumanjali Pali Academic Compendium. 
 

3. Teravada and abstinence from consumption of meat. 
Namaskara, Edit. Denagama Siriwardena, Lakehouse Publications, Colombo. 
 

4. Specialties observed in Pali exposition literature in the Haththavanagalla Viharavansqa. 
Magadhi, Edit. Hasantha Wasana Samarasinghe, Amali Sewwandi Bandaranayake, Pali and 
Buddhist studies unit, Sri Jayawardenapura University. 
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5. From enlightenment of Lord Buddha to the Bhaddawaggiya Princes becoming clergy. 

 
6.  Bhakthyanjali Academic Compendium, Edit. Pimbure Somarathana Thero, Palitha 

Premachandra, Kekunadola Rajamaha Vihara, Pathiraja maha Pirivena, Agalawaththa. 
 
7. The Origin and the development of Pali Teekha literature. 

Nena Saraniya Academic Compendium, Edit. Panamure Sugathasiri Thero, Sri Sumanarama 
Publications, Delthara. 
 

8. External Degree Students' Handbook for Bachelor of Arts Degree(General) ,Humanities and , 
Social Sciences, University of Sri Jayawardenapura.(Editing Assistance) 
 

9. Visual and Performing Arts – Pali and Buddhist \studies Unit, University of Sri 
Jaywardenapura. 
 

 

 Lecturer (Probationary), Venerable Ampare Ananda Thero 

Academic Articles 

1. “ Aaradhya” Ven. Rathanajothi Nayaka Thero Felicitation Academic Compendium – 2014  

“A Study on the Education of Old Ceylon” Academic Article. 

2. “Nivan Maga” 45th Edition 

“Praapthi Danaya”, Academic Article 

3. “The Buddhist Culture in Asia” (Edited by Panahaduwe Yasassi Thero, Senior Lecturer 

Mr. K.A Weerasena. 

4. Most Venerable Pravachana Keerthi Sri Pimbure Uditha Maha Nayaka Thero, 

Bhakthayanjalee Academic Compendium – 2014 

“The Tibet Culture Nurtured by Buddhism”, Academic Article  

 

 Senior Lecturer, Mrs.K.A.S.N. Amarasekara 

Publications 

1. Symbols in Pre Brahmi Stone Inscriptions of Sri Lanka – 2014 Kanchana Printers, 

Wanatha road, Gangodavila Nugegoda. 

 

2. The difference Between the site Based and Landscape Based Approaches to Cultural 

Heritage Management - 2014 Kanchana Printers, Wanatha road, Gangodavila 

Nugegoda. 

 

 

 



Annual Report 2014 

 

-  Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka - Page 97 

Research Articles 
 

1. Expansion of the Pathanagara Complexes in Sri Lanka, Sudakara, Ven. Paamankaada 
Indrajothi Nayaka Thero Felicitation Academic Collection. 
 

2. Gavutha Documents of King Nisssankamalla, Rathmalane Suneetha Nayaka Thero 
Academic Compendium, Edited by Nilantha P. Dissanayake. 

 
3. An Introduction to Indian Monastery Architecture( Handed over to the Magazine of 

the Sinhala Studies Unit.) 2014  
 

 
4. Symbols in Brahmi Stone inscriptions of Sri Lanka, Bhakthayanjalee Academic 

Compendium, Most Venerable Pravachana Keerthi Sri Pimbure Uditha Maha Nayaka 
Thero Felicitation Academic compendium, 2014, Shiromee Printers, Agalawaththa. 
 

5. The Saanchi Torana (Ornamental Gateway) of India. Handed over to be published in 
the Festschrift Academic compendium, scheduled to be published on behalf of the 
100th Birth Anniversary of the late Ven. Aggamaha Panditha Ahungalle Wimalanandi 
Thissa Mahanayaka Thero, 2014 
 

  Lecturer (Probationary), Venerable Dampahala Rahula Thero 

Published Articles 
1. Politics 
2. A study on the nature of the subject of Philosophy and the field of the subject of 

phylosopy 
3. Religion, Philosophy and Science 

 
 

 Lecturer, Venerable Lenagala Siriniwasa Thero 

Research Articles and Papers 
 

1. A Study on Bhãsa and his Plays - Chandrarathnanjalee, Ven. Thalpitiye 
Chandrarathne Thero felicitation Academic Compendium. 
 

2. Beautiful Dhamma – ( Sutra Vivarana) 
 

3. A Critical study on Abhidhamma Lexicons-  Most Venerable Pinnagodakande Vipassi 
Thero Pranamanjalee Academic Compendium,  
Buddhist Academic compendium studies 
 

4. A Study on Bhãsa and his plays - Vidyodhaya  Dhamma Academic Compendium, 
(Festschrift volume to commemorate the 150th Birth Anniversary of Srimath 
Anagarika Dharmapala ) 

 
5. Philosophical concepts brought forth in Upanishads – Vidyalankara Academic 

Compendium, Study of Upanishads 
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 Venerable Vijithapura Gunarathne Thero 

1.  An opinion inquiry on the Knowledge queries found in Western Logic – Pali 

Academic volume, Pali Studies Unit, Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka. 

2.  Signs of Knowledge queries found in Western Logic – Aradya Ven. Bogambara 

Rathanajothi Thero Felicitation Dhamma Academic Compendium. 

3.  Pali Attakatha Tradition – Viduruvana Academic Compendium, Most Venerable 

Mahanuawara Dhammarathana Thero Festschrift - 2014.  

4.  A study on different usages of presumption in the Pali tradition.   

 
 

 Lecturer, Mr. Nilantha P. Dissanayaka 

1. “Abhisambodha”, Ven. Kindelpitiye Aariyamithree Nayaka Thero Festschrift 

academic compendium – 2014 “Buddhism at the start and its rituals” Academic 

article. 

2. “Gnanakiththi Sambhavana”, Academic Compendium – 2014 “A study on the rituals 

connected with God Rajjuru Bandara” Academic article. 

3. “The Buddhist Culture of Asia” (Edited by Ven. Panahaduwe Yasassi thero, Senior 

lecturer Mr. K.A. Weerasena) Handing over an Academic article to the Ven. 

Warayaye Athula Nayaka thero celicitation Academic Compendium. “The 

degredation of the Buddha Sasana in Bharatha” 

4. “Bhakthayanjalee”, Most Venerable Pravachana Keerthi Sri Pimbure Uditha Maha 

Nayaka Thero Felicitation Academic compendium, 2014 “Implementation of the 

antagonistic attitudes of Buddhism introduced by the Colonial rulers in the liberated 

Sri Lanka.” Academic Article 

5. “Nenasaraniya” Venerable Delthara Gnanasiri Nayaka thero Felicitation Academic 

Compendium – 2014 “The onset and development of Practical Buddhism.” 

Academic Compendium. 

6. The liberty of Women brought forth by the age of Buddha” Composition – 2014 

7. “Sinhala Buddhism and its rituals” Composition 
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 Lecturer (probationary), Venerable Baragama Saddhananda Thero 

 
Number of Innovation 
Pre Observation report on the ancient Iron industry with reference to the Muruthawela 

reservoir 
 
Publications of Articles 

Title Publisher 

The historical Background of  
Sankhassapura in Bharatha 

Subharathi (Hewawasam Felicitation 
Academic Compendium 

 
Unpublished Articles  
 
Religious background in the Pre Buddhist Era 
 
The Lay Discipline of Hon. Anagarika Dharmapala leading the way to a Moralistic Society 
 
Necromancy connected with the Bahirava concept.   
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English Translation 

 

AUDITOR GENERAL’S DEPARTMENT 

My No – EC/E/BPU/6/14 (4)                                                         Date – 15th September 2015 

 

 

Venerable Mahopaddyaya Thero, 

     Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka. 

 

The Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the Sri Lanka Buddhist and 

Pali University prepared for the Year Ended 31st December 2014 in terms of Section 14 (2) (C) 

of the Finance Act No. 38 of 1971. 

 

The aforementioned Report has been sent herewith. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sgd. Illegibly 

W.P.C. Wickremarathne 

Auditor General (Acting) 

 

      

    Copies: -     1.  Secretary, Ministry of Higher Education 

                        2.  Secretary, Ministry of Finance 
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English Translation 

 

AUDITOR GENERAL’S DEPARTMENT 

My No – EC/E/BPU/6/14 (4)                                                                               Date – 15th September 

2015 

 

Venerable Mahopaddyaya Thero, 

     Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka. 

 

The Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the Sri Lanka Buddhist and 

Pali University prepared for the Year Ended 31st December 2014 in terms of Section 14 (2) (C) 

of the Finance Act No. 38 of 1971. 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

The audit of financial statements of the Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka for the year 

ended 31 December 2014 comprising the Statement on the Financial Position as at 31 

December 2014 and the Statement on the Financial Performance, statement of changes in 

equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory Information was carried out under my direction in 

pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the  Democratic Socialist 

Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with Section 13(1) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 

and Section 38 of the Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka Act No. 74 of 1981. My 

comments and observations which I consider should be published with the Annual Report of the 

University in terms of Section 14(2)(c) of the Finance Act, appear in this report.  A detailed 

Report in terms of Section 13(7)(a) of the Finance Act will be furnished to the Venerable 

Mahopaddyaya Thero of the University in due course. 

 

1.2 Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and for such 

internal control as the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 



Annual Report 2014 

 

-  Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka - Page 102 

of financial statements that are free from material misstatements whether due to fraud 

or error. 

 

1.3 Auditor’s Responsibility 

 -------------------------------- 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my 

audit.  I conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards which are 

in conformity with the International Auditing Standards of the Supreme Audit 

Institutions. Those Standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan 

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatements.   

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 

and disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatements of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements of the University in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the University. An 

audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 

overall presentation of financial statements.  Sub - sections (3 and 4) of Section 13 of the 

Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 give discretionary power to the Auditor General to 

determine the scope and the extent of the audit.   

 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for my qualified audit opinion. 

 

1.4 Basis for Qualified Opinion 

 ------------------------------------- 

             My opinion is qualified based on the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of this report. 
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2. Financial statements 

 ---------------------------- 

 

2.1 Qualified Opinion 

 ------------------------ 

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of this 

report, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 

Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka as at 31 December 2014 and its financial 

performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Sri Lanka 

Public Sector Accounting Standards. 

 

2.2 Comments on the Financial Statements 

              ----------------------------------------------------- 

 

2.2.1 Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards 

              ------------------------------------------------------------- 

              Even though all the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure have to be included in the 

Financial Statements at the fair value, arrangements have not been made to account the 

fair value by revaluating the assets to the cost of Rs.4,681,438, which have been fully 

depreciated though they are still being utilized.  

 

2.2.2 Accounting Policies 

              -------------------------- 

                          Even though it has been revealed in the financial statements that making adjustments in 

compliance with the time considering the time period applicable to the purchase, 

construction and disposal of assets in adjusting the depreciation applicable to the 

identified assets is the Policy adopting in the computation of the depreciation, the 

University has adopted the policy of depreciation for several classes of Noncurrent 

Assets starting from the date of purchasing while adopting the Policy of Depreciation for 

the whole year without considering the date of purchasing of the other classes of assets. 
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2.2.3 Accounting Deficiencies 

              -------------------------------- 

             The following observations were made.  

               

     (a)    An amount of Rs.624,378 for the depreciation of buildings for the year under review 

has been over stated due to errors made in calculation. 

     (b)   Even though the Depreciation has to be calculated subsequent to estimating the 

time through which the vehicles revalued and owned by the University can be used 

effectively after the revaluation, the accuracy of annual depreciations had not been 

substantiated due to the depreciation of revalued vehicles using the depreciation 

ratios applicable to new vehicles. 

     (c)   In accounting the revaluation of assets, the University had not identified the cost 

and accumulated depreciation correctly. The revaluation surplus had been under 

stated by Rs.11,863,188 as per the computations made at the Audit. 

     (d)  The Revenue Expenditure of Rs.1,749,762 incurred in the revaluation had been 

debited to the Buildings Account as a Capital Expenditure. 

     (e)    Accrued Expenditure of Rs.1,232,684 which was the total related to the Year under 

review had been accounted as the expenditure for the year 2015. 

     (f)   Expenditure for Gratuity and allocation for Gratuity for the year under review had 

been under stated by Rs. 1,356,236 due to non-allocation of provisions for Gratuity 

for officers who had not completed a service of 5 years. 

     (g)    Even though an amount of Rs. 35,035 from the imprest of Rs. 50,000 provided to an 

officer of the Institution for incurring postal expenses had been saved at the end of 

the Year, it had not been mentioned in final accounts as a money balance. 

    (h)    In the preparation of Financial Statements, an amount of Rs. 4,930,839 for the Cost 

for Salaries and Rs. 1,571,407 for the cost for stationary related to the External 

Examinations Division had been accounted as a Cost in the Internal Division and 

depreciation for assets used by the External Examinations Division had not been 

identified. Even though a surplus of Rs. 5, 664,049 had been indicated for the 

External Examinations Division, it is not possible to satisfy with the accuracy of it. 

    (i)     The Uncompleted Works Account had been under stated by Rs. 3,867,814 due to the 

transfer of only the amount paid to the supplier without retainer and advances for 
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the rectification of the error of debiting the value of interim bills paid for building 

projects not completed during the financial year to the Buildings Account. 

    (j)   Expenses to a sum of Rs. 12,487,566 incurred for the renovation and maintenance of 

buildings in the nature of revenue had been accounted as capital expenditure. 

    (k)    Even though goods to the cost of Rs. 674,653 which had been purchased for 

maintenance activities were remaining at the end of the year under review, the 

goods had not been accounted as balance in stock but had been written off against 

the profit. 

     (l)    Though the Expenditure generated during the year under review but unpaid could 

be accrued as an expenditure of the Financial year, expenditure to the value of Rs. 

2,025,064, the accumulated value for the financial Year had been accrued based on 

a report compiled using the values indicated in the expenditure estimates of each 

Course of the External Examinations Division, which were not actually generated 

values.  

    (m)   A physical verification of stocks had not been carried out for stocks of publications 

as at 31 December 2014. The value of stock had been under stated by Rs. 568,020 

due to indicating the value of Stock of publications which was Rs. 946,700 according 

to the report of the Assistant Registrar who was in charge of stocks of publications 

as Rs. 378,680 in Financial Statements. 

    (n)    The balance of Rs. 1,249,213 which had been deferred in the previous year through 

the External courses had been further maintained as a deferred income without 

identifying it as an income of the Year under review.    

 

2.2.4 Unreconciled Control Accounts 

              ----------------------------------------- 

             Even though the balance of distressed loan as per the Statement of Financial Position as 

at 31st December of the Year under review was Rs. 2,751,099, a difference of Rs. 372,915 

was reported in the balance of the distressed loan since the balance was Rs. 2,944,014 

according to the List of individual balances. 
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2.2.5 Non availability of Evidences for the Audit 

             --------------------------------------------------------- 

             Evidences were not submitted to the Audit to substantiate the projects for which the 

balances of Rs. 8,756,861 payable to the Central Engineering Consultancy Bureau (CECB) 

and Rs. 1,239,426 payable to the State Engineering Corporation which had expired more 

than 5 years and included in the retained balances on contracts included in the Financial 

Statements, had been retained.  

  

2.3       Transactions not Substantiated by Adequate Authority 

             -------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

             Extraneous to the Government approved salaries and allowances, a sum of Rs. 988,600 

had been paid to the non-academic staff as allowances while not having an adequate 

surplus from the income earned from three Courses related to the External Projects 

conducted by the University without complying with the Circular No. 95 dated 14th June 

1994 of the Department of Public Enterprises. 

 

2.4       Non – Compliance with Laws, Rules, Regulations and Management Decisions 

             -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

             The following instances of noncompliance with the following Laws, Rules, regulations 

and Management Decisions were observed. 

 

              

Reference to the Laws, Rules and 

Regulations etc. 

-------------------------------------------------------- 

Non Compliances 

------------------------ 

(a)  Section 3.1 of the Chapter 20 and 

Section 1.6.1 of the Chapter 10 of the 

Establishments Code of the University 

Grants Commission and Higher Education 

Attendance and departure registers and 

leave registers of the Academic Staff had 

not been submitted for Audit to 

substantiate the total of Rs. 51,514,987 

paid as salaries and allowances   during the 

year under review.  

(b) Circular No. 842 dated 19th December A Fixed Assets Register had not been 
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1978 of the General Treasury  maintained. 

 

 

3.       Financial Review 

           ----------------------- 

 

3.1     Financial Results 

           ---------------------- 

 

3.2     Legal Actions Instituted against the University 

          -------------------------------------------------------------- 

08 cases have been filed in Courts of Law by employees against the University due to 

dismissal from service on various grounds and not providing Posts. 

 

4.      Operational Review 

          -------------------------- 

   

4.1     Performance 

           ----------------- 

Even though the training of Scholars on the Buddhism and on the rules of discipline for 

the priesthood for publicizing the Religion of Buddhism in Sri Lanka as well as in foreign 

countries and for fostering the Buddhist missionary activities, the attraction of foreign 

students for obtaining internal degrees was drastically declined when compared with that 

of in the previous years.    

4.2    The Cost per Student 

          ---------------------------- 

The total recurrent expenditure incurred for 359 students for the academic activities 

during the year under review was Rs.235,642,269 and the total recurrent expenditure 

incurred for 333 students during the previous year was Rs.190,592,915. The cost per 

student was Rs.656,385 in the year under review and it was an increase of 14.68 percent 

when compared with Rs.572,351 which was the cost per student in the previous year. 
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4.3   Management Inefficiencies 

         ------------------------------------- 

        The following observations were made. 

 

        (a)      In the promotion of a Lecturer in Grade II to Grade I on the basis of a self-evaluation 

Report as per the Circular No. 721 dated 21 November 1997, the promotion of the 

Lecturer in Grade II to Grade I has been made by antedating for four years as an 

approved methodology had not been designed by the Administrative Council for the 

determination of the date of promotion.  

         

        (b)      Two Sub wardens were recruited on the contract basis for covering duties of the Sub 

wardens of hostels who had been transferred to the Ministry for disciplinary inquiries. 

Even though the permanent Sub wardens had been re-employed subsequent to the 

end of the disciplinary inquiries, one of the Sub wardens recruited on contract basis 

had been employed further by extending the period of contract. The requirement of 

extending the contract appointment was not clarified in the Audit and an amount of 

Rs. 161,320 had been uneconomically paid to the above Sub warden as salaries until 

02nd July 2015.  

 

         (c) Having obtained a Degree obtained from a recognized University is the minimum 

qualification for the recruitment of an officer for a Post of Computer Instructor of 

Grade II. However, a person who had not fulfilled the said minimum qualification had 

been recruited to a Post of Computer Instructor Grade II by the University with effect 

from 08th October 2012. 17 applicants who had fulfilled the basic requirement had 

applied for this Post and applicants who had completed the Degree with the Subject 

of Information Technology were among those applicants and therefore, the reasons 

for recruiting the aforementioned applicant who had not even submitted a Degree 

Certificate, could not be revealed at the Audit. 

 

         (d)    An officer who had been appointed as an Assistant Registrar of the University with 

effect from 12th July 2004 had been removed from the service during his probationary 
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period on 27th January 2009 making various accusations against him and without 

conducting a Disciplinary Inquiry. The officer had filed cases in the Human Rights 

Commission on two instances against the extension and termination of the 

probationary period and the Human Rights Commission had ordered to reinstate the 

Officer in the Service and to provide him with the other concessions entrusted to him. 

It had been informed through the Circular No. 17/2005 dated 05th October 2005 that 

the decisions taken by the Human Rights Commission had to be executed and it has 

also been notified through the letter of the Secretary to the President bearing No. 

E&O/AC/1/8/6 dated 10th October 2014 that the Cabinet of Ministers had to be 

notified in case the decisions of the Human Rights Commission would not be 

executed. However action had not been taken accordingly. 

 

        (e)  A newspaper advertisement had been published with a view to recruiting a Lecturer 

(Probationary) for the subject of Sanskrit in the Department of Cultural and 

Languages Studies and a Board had been appointed to conduct a structured interview 

for the selection of a qualified person. The Post of Lecturer had been awarded to the 

person who was in the fifth position according to the merit order of marks without 

recruiting the person who had scored the highest marks according to the interview 

Mark sheet. The reason for filling the vacancy in an irregular and unlawful manner 

was not clarified at the Audit. An Applicant who was alleged to have been treated 

unfairly due to this reason had filed a case against the University. 

  

         (f)     Projects pertaining to a sum of Rs. 915,262 which had exceeded a period in between 2 

to 5 years after paying advances had not been implemented and the institution had 

not taken action to recover the advance amount or performance bonds from the 

responsible officers or to take legal action against such officers. 

 

 

 

 

4.4   Operational Inefficiencies 
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         ---------------------------------- 

         The following observations were made. 

         (a)     The balance of Scholarships and Prizes Fund Investment Savings Account as at 31 

December 2014 was Rs. 2,154,522 and the amount had been maintained as a savings 

deposit without investing it.  

 

        (b)     Jiun Buddhist Research and Publications Fund established for assisting the researches 

only in the fields of Buddhist Studies and Pali language had not been used to 

accomplish the relevant objective subsequent to the year 2006 and the balance of the 

Fund at the end of the year under review was Rs. 2,134,222. 

         (c)     A Committee had been appointed for the verification of Library books during the year 

2013 and a deficit of 4224 library books was observed as per the report of the 

Committee. Even though the value of deficit has to be adjusted using accounts 

subsequent to taking necessary action by investigating the reasons for the deficit and 

by identifying the parties responsible, procedures in that regard had not been taken.  

 

4.5   Under-utilization of Funds 

         ------------------------------------ 

         A balance exceeding Rs. 20 Million was available in the Monetary Account maintained for 

Capital Expenditure as at the last date of the Year 2014 due to obtaining treasury 

provisions without forecasting the requirements of funds properly. 

 

4.6   Idle and Under Utilized Assets 

         ---------------------------------------- 

           The following observations were made. 

           

           (a)  Even though infrastructure facilities including modernized buildings equipped with all 

the facilities have been improved incurring a cost of Rs. 512 Million starting from the 

year 2004, plans had not been designed to use the facilities.    

 

           (b)  A Fax Machine, a Clerical Table and 02 water filter stands to the values of Rs.30,240, 

Rs.19,100 and 27,866 respectively had been stored for a period of 08 months to 31 
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months as capital goods had not been purchased on necessity. The reasons for 

purchasing these goods without a necessity was not clarified at the Audit.    

 

5.      Accountability and Good Governance 

         -------------------------------------------------------- 

 

5.1   Procurement Plan 

         ------------------------ 

                      11 items of goods out of 35 items of goods that had been scheduled to be purchased 

according to the Procurement Plan for the Year under review had not been purchased and 

27 items of goods to the cost of Rs. 8,978,551 had been purchased without being 

conformed to the procurement plan. Accordingly, it was observed that the procurement 

plan had not been used as an effective financial controlling agent.  

 

6.     Systems and Controls 

         ----------------------------- 

The deficiencies in systems and controls observed at the Audit were brought to the 

attention of the Venerable Mahopaddyaya Thero of the Buddhist and Pali University of Sri 

Lanka. The special attention has to be focused on the following fields of control.  

(a)    Management of Assets 
(b)    Constructions 
(c )    Human Resources Management 
(d)    Accounting related to the external Projects 
(e)    Controlling of Vehicles 

   

W.P.C. Wickremarathne 

Auditor General (Acting) 
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My Number - BPU/1AB/03/BPU/Report-2014 

Date – 26.02.2016 

Auditor General, 

Auditor General’s Department, 

No.306/72, Polduwa Road, 

Battaramulla. 

 

The Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the Sri Lanka Buddhist and 

Pali University prepared for the Year Ended 31st December 2014 in terms of Section 14 (2) (C) 

of the Finance Act No. 38 of 1971. 

2.2 Comments on the Financial Statements 

             ----------------------------------------------------- 

2.2.1 Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards 

             ------------------------------------------------------------- 

             Agreed. Necessary instruction have been issued to include in the Accounts prepared for 

the year 2015 after revaluating. 

2.2.2 Accounting Policies 

             -------------------------- 

             (a) Agreed. Necessary instructions have been issued to implement the Depreciation 

Policy according to the standards with effect from the year 2015. 

2.2.3 Accounting Deficiencies 

             -------------------------------- 

             (a) Not agreed. Since the expenditure of Rs. 12,487,566/= incurred on the 

renovation and maintenance of buildings under the rehabilitation and 

improvement of capital assets is a capital expenditure, a sum of Rs. 624,378/= 

has been accounted as the allocation for the relevant depreciation. 

            (b) Since the useful life has not been mentioned in the revaluation of vehicles, the 

depreciation has been effected on the policy which has already been adhered to 

and such depreciation has been accounted. 

            (c) Agreed. Necessary instructions have been issued to investigate into the 

revaluation surplus that was pointed out and to rectify the same in the future. 
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            (d) Agreed. Accordingly, instructions have been issued to make relevant 

rectifications. 

             (e)     The expenditure of Rs. 1,232,684/= pointed out in the financial year 2014 is a 

collection of 35 vouchers and a sum of Rs. 147,700/= out of the amount has been 

accounted as accrued expenses and since vouchers related to the rest of the 

expenses had been received by the Finance Division in the Month of February, 

such expenditure has been accounted for the year 2015. 

             (f) Agreed. Necessary instructions have been issued to make arrangements in 

accordance with the relevant accounting standards with effect from the next 

year. 

             (g) Agreed. Necessary instructions have been issued to make relevant rectifications 

in the Year 2015. 

             (h) I would like to inform you that it is expected to open a separate account for the 

External Examinations and Post Graduate Studies Division with effect from 

01.01.2016. Accordingly, I would like to inform you that this will lead to submit 

accounting activities of the External Examinations Division much clearly in the 

future. 

             (i) The advance amount of Rs. 4,219,824/= paid to the supplier is included in the 

sum of Rs. 12,698,921/=, which is the value of interim bills paid for the building 

projects which were not completed. The sum of Rs. 1,037,047/=, the amount 

retained has only been mentioned in short. Measures necessary for the relevant 

rectification have been taken. 

(j) The sum has been accounted as a rehabilitation and improvement of assets 

under capital expenditure. 

 (k) Not agreed. Not included in accounts. 

(l) Even though it had been scheduled to incur expenditure for external projects in 

the year 2014, an unspent amount of Rs.2,025,064/=  until 31.12.2014 has been 

mentioned as accrued expenses. 

            (m) Agreed. The amount of discount (40%) provided for the stock of publications has 

only been stated in the account. 

            (n) Necessary Action has been taken to keep accounts for the sum of Rs. 1,249,213/= 

deferred in the previous year through the external courses, as an income in the 
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year 2015. Since it has been scheduled to conduct only one course of study for 

two years and the rest of the Courses would be completed within one year, the 

income earned from such Courses had been accounted as the income of the year 

and only the income earned from the course of Buddhist Counseling conducted 

for Police Officers had been deferred for the following year. 

2.2.4 Unreconciled Control Accounts 

              ----------------------------------------- 

             Agreed. Necessary measures have been taken to rectify this in the future. 

2.2.5 Non availability of Evidences for the Audit 

             --------------------------------------------------------- 

 It is expected to take action in this regard subsequent to obtaining a recommendation 

from the Administrative Council. 

2.3 Transactions not Substantiated by Adequate Authority 

             -------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 Not agreed. According to the Accounting Reports, it is obvious that there is an adequate 

excess for the payment of allowances. Accordingly, this cannot be accepted as a 

management inefficiency. Likely, the Director General of the Department of National 

Budget had informed us through his letter dated 25.06.2014 on the heading of 

Maintenance of a Fund for Post Graduate and External Examination Courses and 

incurring its expenditure that they have no objection pertaining to the maintenance and 

administration of a Fund for Post Graduate Degrees and External Examination Courses in 

terms of Provisions stipulated in Sub section (2) (i) of Section 17 of the Buddhist and Pali 

University of Sri Lanka Act. No. 74 of 1981 in responding the letter dated 01.04.2014 

sent by the Venerable Mahopadyaya Thero on the above heading. Accordingly, the 

administrative functions of the Fund are performed as per the instructions issued by the 

Administrative Council. 

 

2.4       Non – Compliance with Laws, Rules, Regulations and Management Decisions 

             --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  

(a)  

            (1)        A Register on Lecture Records including the information on Lectures conducted as 

per a fixed time table, viz name / signature / date / time / subject code of the 
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lecturer and signature of student is maintained by each Department of study to 

confirm the attendance of the Lecturer. 

             (2) The Heads of the Departments of Study have recommended that Lecturers do 

report for lectures. Further, they have recommended that the attendance of 

Lecturers for duties, meetings and the other committees is substantiated by 

placing signatures. In addition, a register for placing signatures of lecturers in 

each Department of Study is also being maintained for substantiating the 

attendance of Lecturers. 

     (3) The service rendered by the lecturers of the university cannot be limited to a 08 

hours’ service. Therefore, it is not possible to mark the time of their departure. 

They engage in services pertaining to the studies such as providing instructions in 

relation to independent assignments and researches, preparation of question 

papers, standardization and evaluation of answer scripts and engaging in 

researches without imposing a time restriction. 

   Even though the Auditors have constantly inquired this matter for the past years, it is 

kindly notified that our University has to adhere to the same methodology that is being 

followed by the entire system of Universities. 

(b) Not agreed. A register for fixed assets is being maintained at present. It is expected to 

update in the future as per the Circulars. 

 

3.       Financial Review 

           ----------------------- 

3.1     Financial Results 

 ---------------------- 

3.2    Legal Actions Instituted against the University 

          -------------------------------------------------------------- 

08 cases are still in the trial stage and it is kindly notified that action has to be taken in the 

future according to the verdicts given by the Courts of law for the Cases.  

 

 

 



Annual Report 2014 

 

-  Buddhist and Pali University of Sri Lanka - Page 116 

4.     Operational Review 

         -------------------------- 

 

4.1   Performance 

         ----------------- 

Number of foreign students attracted to follow Courses in the previous year had reduced 

due to the higher level of existing competition for the Degree Courses in the University. 

(Institutions conferring Buddhist Degrees and Diplomas have been commenced in the 

recent past and state patronage has also been provided for such institutions.) The 

reduction in a year cannot be considered as a reduction in the performance since this 

varies according to the internal as well as external factors. 

4.2   The Cost per Student 

         ---------------------------- 

Not Agreed. Since the expenditure incurred on the External Examinations Division is also 

included in the recurrent expenditure though the total recurrent expenditure during the 

year is considered in the computation of cost per student, it is more appropriate to 

compute this cost per student subsequent to taking into account the students following 

Post Graduate Degrees without considering the expenditure. The Ministry of Higher 

Education has decided that the number of internal students enrolled to this University is 

in the range of 100-110 students in every year. Likely, recurrent expenditure had reached 

a higher value due to the annual increments in salaries and the increase in the other 

expenses. The situation has created due to the decrease in the number of students 

enrolled when it is compared with the increase in the expenditure. The promotional 

activities required for the enrolment of larger number of foreign students are being 

carried out constantly as a remedial measure to overcome this situation and I hope to 

attract a higher number of foreign students by modernizing the Courses in the future. 

 

4.3   Management Inefficiencies 

         ------------------------------------- 

(a)    This University has also adopted the methodology adopted by the University System of 

back dating the date of fulfilling qualifications without exceeding the effective date 

(01.12.1997) of the Circular (721) where it has been mentioned that a Senior lecturer in 
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Grade II is qualified to be promoted to Senior Lecturer Grade I subsequent to completing a 

service of 06 years in Grade II. 

  

           The approval of the Administrative Council for following the methodology introduced by 

the Establishments Circular Letter 11/2015 dated 04.09.2015 of the University Grants 

Commission. 

 

(b)     Since it was not possible to obtain the services of the two permanent Sub wardens, two 

Sub wardens were recruited on contract basis. Even though the permanent Sub wardens 

subsequently reported for duty again, there was a necessity to obtain the service of a new 

Sub Warden as “Sarasavi Medura” Hostel had been opened by the time. Accordingly, the 

service of a sub Warden on the contract basis was obtained as per the decision of the 

Administrative Council until a Sub warden is recruited on the permanent basis by 

including the requirement in to the estimate of the personnel. 

 

(c)      Mr. Gunasekera was informed to submit the original copy of his First Degree Certificate to 

the University and accordingly, he had submitted the said original copy to the University. 

It was referred to the relevant University through the E-mail with a view to substantiating 

the information mentioned in it. However, the e-mail was not sent to the recipient and as 

a result a letter was sent to the said University using a courier Service. No response has 

yet been received for the letter.  

 

(d)     The service of the Officer had been terminated on a decision of the Administrative Council 

on 27.01.2009. The decisions taken by the Administrative Council from time to time has 

already been submitted to the Auditor. Likewise, this officer has filed a case in the labour 

tribunal under MH/33/763/9 against the Institution and it is not possible to take a final 

action until a final decision is given since the case is still in the trial stage. Further, it is 

obvious that it is not possible to take action according to the letter No. E&O/AC/1/8/6 

which was pointed out by the Auditor since the letter was issued on 10.10.2014. 
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(e)   The interviews were conducted again as per the judgement of the Supreme Court Case 

SCFR110/2014. The recommendation of the Interview Committee has been forwarded to 

the Administrative Council for approval. 

 

(f)     I noted down the matter to investigate it in the future and to take action necessary to 

rectify it. 

 

4.4   Operational Inefficiencies 

         ---------------------------------- 

(a)   Agreed. This savings account is comprised of the interest income earned through the 

investment of the Scholarship and Prizes Fund. The money required for scholarships and 

prizes awarded annually is taken from this account and long term investments have not 

been made as there is no possibility of keeping the money required for scholarships and 

prizes which are awarded for the following year and to invest the remaining amount of 

money in long term investments at the end of the year. It has been decided to consider 

this in the future. 

(b)   There was a problematic situation in the accomplishment of the objectives of this Fund 

adhering to the criteria already existed and the criteria of the Fund has been altered by 

now for the accomplishment of the relevant objectives more effectively in the way that 

the Auditor has pointed out in the previous years.   

 

4.5   Under-utilization of Funds 

         ------------------------------------ 

Even though payments have to be made by 31.12.2014 for Capital Expenditure, balance of 

money was remained in the account as payments have not been made due to following 

reasons.  

    Non submission of bills in due time by the relevant contractual institutions for work in 

progress.  

    Delay in work due to weather. 
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4.6   Idle and Under Utilized Assets 

         ---------------------------------------- 

(a)    Not Agreed. All the buildings have been constructed based on the requirement and they 

are used accordingly.  

  

(b)   These goods have been purchased according to the demand of each Division. 02 Water 

Filter Stands have been purchased for Offices of the Faculties. These goods had been 

stored in the main stores without making a placement of these goods during the period of 

enlarging the Faculty Office Building. Necessary action has been taken to place the goods 

in the relevant faculties since the enlargement of the Faculty Administration building has 

already been finalized. 

           

          The Clerical Table pointed out in the Report had been purchased fpr the External 

Examinations and Post Graduate Centre, Colombo and this table had not been carried 

from the main Stores due to ongoing office modernization activities. The good has already 

been handed over to the relevant Division. 

 

           Fax machine has already been handed over to the relevant Division. 

 

5.      Accountability and Good Governance 

         -------------------------------------------------------- 

 

5.1   Procurement Plan 

         ------------------------ 

                    Not Agreed. Practically such purchases have to be made on timely requirements. Purchasing 

of such goods have been made from Government Institutions under the Power of 

Superintendent entrusted to the Mahopapddyaya Thero for incurring costs. I would like to 

inform you that purchases in all the other instances have been made in compliance with 

the Circulars issued from time to time by the Government and adopting the Procurement 

Process of the Government. 
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 Further, I would like to point out that the Procurement Plan is used as an effective 

financial controlling agent in every year by the University.  

 

6.     Systems and Controls 

         ----------------------------- 

Attention will be focused for minimization of the deficiencies in the future if such 

deficiencies are detected subsequent to investigating such deficiencies indicated in these 

fields. 

 

Professor Venerable Gallelle Sumanasiri Thero 

Mahopaddyaya Thero 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


